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Enterprise Culture
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OUR OBIJECTIVES:

Create values for our customers;
Create profits for our shareholders;
Create future for our employees;
Create prosperity for our society.

BFAN=RE

REFAIEEE
EHx%EJL%'JA ;
28l

&R
LR o

OUR MISSION:

Developing environmental
friendly energy to secure
sustainable development
and make contributions to
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China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) (stock code: 603) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in investment
in natural gas and energy related business. Operations of the Group include
piped city gas business, pipeline design and construction; transportation,
distribution and sale of compressed natural gas (“CNG”) and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG"); and development, production and sale of crude oil and
gas and other upstream energy resources.

As a piped city natural gas service provider, the Group supplies city natural
gas through long-distance transmission pipelines. With 64 concession
rights, the Group has built up city pipeline networks which offer stable and
sufficient natural gas resources to local household, industrial, commercial
and other users. As a non-pipeline natural gas provider, the Group has
established 2 LNG plants in Qinghai Province, the PRC. Meanwhile, the
Group has also built certain CNG primary stations to ensure a smooth supply
of natural gas all year round. These facilities support supplies of natural gas
to cities not yet covered by pipeline networks and are treated as emergency
backup gas sources for the Group.

As a major national operator of natural gas stations for automobile natural
gas filling, the Group has built 36 CNG stations, 9 LNG stations and 3 L/
CNG stations across the country. All kinds of automobiles, city buses and
long-distance buses can be converted into natural gas operation system
by paying an affordable fee. Some of the provinces will provide subsidy to
automobile owners who are willing to convert their automobile into natural
gas operating system. With support from the PRC government, the Group
offers inexpensive, clean and environmental friendly natural gas to the
transportation sector.

As an operator of natural gas branch line business, the Group has already
completed 1,033 km branch lines in Qinghai, Hunan, lJiangsu, Jiangxi,
Ningxia, Shandong, Guizhou, Anhui and Hubei Province. Apart from bringing
in stable natural gas transmission revenue, the branch line constructions will
also facilitate the development of projects along the down-stream.

The Group has well established a large-scale developed natural gas transport
and logistics operation in the PRC, including the set up of LNG and CNG fleets
which have reinforced the mobility and coverage of our natural gas supplies.

As an upstream energy resources producer, the Group engages in the
development, production and sale of crude oil and gas and other resources
in Alberta of Canada. Baccalieu Energy Inc. (“Baccalieu”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has proven reserves of approximately 18.2 million
barrels of oil equivalent and proven plus probable reserves of approximately
25.2 million barrels of oil equivalent. Its average daily production was 4,266
barrels of oil equivalent in 2014. Baccalieu possesses energy business in
production, a very experienced management team with proven track record,
stable production assets portfolio and strong profitability with considerable
potential for growth.
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Natural Gas Distribution Business in China
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Oil and Gas Production Business in Canada
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Dear shareholders,

I am pleased to present the business review and prospect of China Oil
And Gas Group Limited (“China Oil & Gas” or “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 to all
shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND BY WAY OF BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

The Board resolved to recommend to the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Tuesday, 26 May 2015 (“2015 AGM") a final dividend by way of bonus
issue of new share of HK$0.01 each (the “Share”) on the basis of one
bonus Share for every ten Shares (2013: cash dividend of HK cent 0.72 per
Share) whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Tuesday, 2 June 2015 (“Record Date”) (the “Bonus Issue”). The final
dividend in 2013 amounted to approximately HK$36,005,000.

The Bonus Issue will be credited as fully paid by way of capitalisation of an
amount of approximately HK$5,300,000 in the share premium account of
the Company.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

RESULTS

The Group has experienced an extraordinarily strenuous year in 2014. After
the PRC National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC") increased
the city gate natural gas price, the Xining Government in Qinghai Province
has not instantly approved to adjust the downstream tariff. This has led
the Group to suffer substantial margin squeeze of that area. However, that
government has recently issued its approval to pass through the natural
gas price adjustments to the designated users with effect from 15 March
2015 on the price hike in July 2013. Moreover, the oil price has been
dropped significantly by the end of 2014, which led to a decrease of the
price competitiveness on the natural gas sales. Despite the above difficulties,
the Group has recorded a total revenue of HK$7,698 million in 2014, with
an increase of 20% compared with HK$6,440 million in 2013. With the
aforesaid difficulties, profit for the year attributable to the owners of the

Group in 2014 was HK$309 million, with a 23% decrease as compared to
2013. As of 31 December 2014, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$15,467 million, or a growth of 27%; net asset value was HK$6,093
million, an increase of 5%.
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Chairman’s Statement
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BUSINESS REVIEW KB R

NATURAL GAS BUSINESS AARREK

Under the natural gas business, the Group has established a total of 109 AAREBFE R-_ZE—WOF+=-_A=+—
B SERFEISEERBERERKARIE
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natural gas project companies in 15 provinces and autonomous regions in
China with 64 concession rights as at 31 December 2014.

Natural Gas Sales Volume (million m3)
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

Sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's total gas sales volume

reached 2,506 million m?, representing an increase of 12% as compared to

2013; gas transmission volume increased 51% from 377 million m? to 569
million m?in 2014; and transportation volume up 6% to 132 million m3.

Gas sales volume to residential users was 598 million m? (2013: 487 million
m3); to industrial, commercial and other users was 1,487 million m? (2013:
1,366 million m3); and to gas stations was 422 million m? (2013: 394 million

m?3), representing an increase of 23%, 9% and 7% respectively.

Concession Rights
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Chairman’s Statement
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End Users
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The Group has completed new connections to 161,780 residential users
and 1,096 industrial, commercial and other users during the year. As at the
end of the year, accumulated connections of the Group were approximately
836,800 residential users and 6,600 industrial, commercial and other users
representing an increase of 24% and 20% respectively as compared to
2013. It is anticipated that the number of new users will maintain stable
growth in the future. With the increased in the number of new users, the
Group will continue to trigger more channels for the sales of natural gas
and provide services to more natural gas end-users, which will lay a solid
foundation for the sales of natural gas by the Group in the future.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

Development of natural gas distribution business

During 2014, focusing on coast and riverfront markets and centered on
the existing scope of businesses, the Group conducted intensive research
and development in respect of the periphery of key natural gas pipelines.
The Group has obtained 4 city gas concession rights in Yangxin county,
Hubei Province, Wuxi-Xinyi Industrial Park in Xinyi City, Jiangsu Province,
Anren County, Chenzhou City, Hunan Province and Shenlun Town, Taizhou
City, Jiangsu Province. Developed more than 10 new gas stations projects,
including Guangzhou Panyu and Nansha LNG refueling stations, Henan
Sanmenxia CNG primary station, Changbei L/CNG refueling station, Nantong
Hongjiang L/CNG refueling station, Nantong vehicles hub L/CNG refueling
station, Xining Mafang oil and gas station and Xining east exit oil and gas
station. The Group continued to promote the application of LNG business

|u

of “gas in substitution of oil” by selecting key areas and closely monitoring
the LNG projects in Jiangsu Province and along the Ganjiang River in Jiangxi
Province, and progresses were made in gas used by modified vessels, gas
used by modified vehicles and LNG point-to-point projects. In 2014, the
Group extended approximately 103 km of new high pressure pipelines,
forming a high pressure pipeline network of 1,033 km, which pushed the
development of downstream projects effectively. The city and courtyard
pipeline network extended by 932 km in 2014, reaching an aggregate length
of 5,833 km. The Group will make persistent efforts to obtain new gas

projects and promote the development of natural gas distribution business.
Exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas business

The Company entered into an agreement with independent third parties
on 20 June 2014 to acquire 100% equity interest of Baccalieu Energy Inc.
(“Baccalieu”) at a consideration of Canadian Dollar (“CAD") 235.5 million,
which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

According to a reserve report prepared by GLJ Petroleum Consultants,
Baccalieu has proven reserves of approximately 18.2 million barrels of oil
equivalent (63% is light oil and NGLs, 37% is natural gas) and proven plus
probable reserves of approximately 25.2 million barrels of oil equivalent
(63% is light oil and NGLs, 37% is natural gas) as of 31 December 2014.

In 2014, the average daily production of Baccalieu was 4,266 barrels of
oil equivalent (67% is light oil and NGLs, 33% is natural gas). The average
operating netback was CAD43.97 per barrel of oil equivalent.
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Baccalieu possesses energy business in production, a very experienced
management team with proven track record and stable production assets
portfolio with considerable potential for growth. The financial results of
Baccalieu has been consolidated into the Group since the second half of 2014.

SENIOR NOTES AND CREDIT RATINGS

In November 2014, the Company issued US$300 million senior notes bearing
an interest rate of 5.0% per annum payable semi-annually in arrear due
2020 at par. Moody’s Investors Service maintained the Company a credit
rating of “Ba1”, Standard & Poor’s maintained the Company a credit rating
of “BB+", reflecting the Company’s solid and stable financial position and
operational prospects.

BUSINESS PROSPECT

The growth of the economy of China will continue towards a “New
Normal” development mode which pays more attention to the environment
and the sustainability of growth. As the central government carries out
comprehensive reform deepening and promulgates the related energy
development strategies and measures for improving the atmospheric
environment, the results of the structural adjustment of energy of China will
gradually be seen, clean energy has become the main force in the energy
structural adjustment, more utilization of natural gas has become a realistic
choice to achieve energy structural adjustment.

In 2014, NDRC of China announced the “National Plan for Tackling Climate
Change (2014-2020)". According to this plan, by 2020 the proportion of
natural gas consumption in primary energy consumption will rise from the
current 5% to over 10%, the consumption volume will jump from the current
level of approximately 180 billion m? to 360 billion m?3, the substantial increase
in demand for natural gas will bring good opportunities for the long term
development of the natural gas downstream distribution sector.

On 28 February 2015, NDRC of China announced the adjustment of gas
price of existing volume and incremental volume, so as to achieve the same
price ceiling of natural gas for non-residential users of all provinces, this is
favourable for creating an environment for fair market competition, and lay a
good foundation for the adopting market mechanism for natural gas pricing,
also this allows the price advantages of natural gas in relation to comparable
types of energy to continue as the state’s support of the development of the
natural gas industry. Consequently, the Group keeps an optimistic attitude
towards the prospect of the natural gas distribution sector in China in which
the Group is engaged.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

2014 is a crucial year for the Group to realise its development strategy of
vertical integration of upstream and downstream operations. Since the
conventional oil and gas resources in the PRC are relatively deficient, for a
long time the Group has been actively seeking for overseas valuable oil and
gas resources, in order to form the strategic objective of vertical integration
of upstream and downstream operations. In June 2014, the Group
successfully acquired Baccalieu, which was a key step in the implementation
of that strategy. Faced with the market environment of falling international
oil prices and the prices sustaining at a low range, the Group will maintain
a modest drilling program, focusing on the production of light oil which has
high economic benefits. At the same time, it will seize the good development
opportunities presented by the undervalued oil prices, and actively seek
valuable oil and gas interests and reserves.

Looking ahead, faced with new opportunities and challenges, the Group
will continue to strengthen the management and operation level of the
Company, further optimise the management models, enhance management
efficiency; continue to devote more efforts to expand the market, actively
expand into new projects on the basis of the current investment portfolio
and business model; use the advantages of the coordinated development
of the upstream and downstream operations of the Group to make it to
become a comprehensive energy group which will be trusted by its clients,
respected by the society and with good management and which will
continue to create value for shareholders.

On behalf of the Board
China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group and its notes and other
sections in the annual report for the year ended 2014.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$7,698 million, a growth of 20% over 2013. The Group’s cost of sales
was HK$6,545 million (2013: HK$4,986 million), representing an increase
of 31%. Due to the government of Qinghai Province has not instantly
approved to adjust the downstream tariff as instructed by NDRC, the Group's
revenue growth is less than the growth of cost of sales. However, the Xining
government has issued its approval to pass through the natural gas price
adjustments to the designated users with effect from 15 March 2015.

Revenue for the year combining by three segments, namely (1) sales and
distribution of natural gas and other related products (2) gas pipeline
construction and connection and (3) exploitation and production of crude
oil and natural gas, amounted to HK$6,296 million, HK$1,077 million and
HK$325 million respectively and representing a year-to-year increase of
17%, 3% and exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas was
from the newly acquired Baccalieu since the acquisition date of 20 June
2014. Sales and distribution of natural gas continued to be the Group’s main
source of income and constituted 82% of the total revenue (2013: 84%).

The Group'’s selling and distribution costs increased by 7% to approximately
HK$62 million from HK$58 million in 2013. The increase was in line with
the Group’s new project companies set up during the year and new
concession rights. The Group placed great emphasis on the effectiveness and
appropriateness of sales strategies and successfully controlled its selling and
distribution costs at 0.8% (2013: 0.9%) of the total revenue.

Administrative expenses has been increased by 52% to HK$333 million due
to acquisition of Baccalieu during the year and the related transaction costs.

Finance costs net of capitaisation has been increased from last year's HK$115
million to current year’s HK$136 million, which was mainly constituted
by coupon interest on our senior notes issued on 25 April 2013 and 11
November 2014. The Group's weighted average cost of all indebtedness
(including bank borrowings, other borrowings and senior notes) as at 31
December 2014 was 5.2% (2013: 4.9%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources

It is the Group's policy to use the cash flow generated from operations and
appropriate level of borrowings as the principal source of fund to finance
major expansion and acquisition. On 25 April 2013, the Company issued
US$350 million senior notes bearing an interest rate of 5.25% per annum
payable semi-annually in arrear due 2018 at par and on 11 November 2014,
the Company issued another US$300 million senior notes bearing an interest
rate of 5% per annum payable semi-annually in arrear due 2020 at par. The
Company repaid a HK$700 million other borrowing during the year. As at 31
December 2014, the Group's total indebtedness (including bank borrowings,
other borrowings and senior notes) amounted to HK$5,787 million (2013:
HK$4,335 million).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and
time deposits with maturity over three months of approximately HK$3,665
million (2013: HK$4,173 million). Total assets of HK$15,467 million (2013:
HK$12,157 million), and among which current assets were HK$5,421 million
(2013: HK$5,426 million). Total liabilities of the Group were HK$9,375
million (2013: HK$6,331 million), and among which current liabilities were
HK$3,856 million (2013: HK$2,680 million).

The Group's debt-to-asset ratio, measured on the basis of total indebtedness
divided by total assets was 37% (2013: 36%). The current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.41 times (2013: 2.02
times). The financial and liquidity of the Group has remained at a healthy and
stable position.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

At the end of 2014, the Group employed a total of 3,828 (2013: 3,643) full-
time employees, where mostly were stationed in the PRC. Total staff cost for
the year amounted to HK$327 million (2013: HK$248 million). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, working experience
and the prevailing market wage level. The total remuneration of the
employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based incentives.

Pledge of Assets

At the end of the year, the Group has pledged part of its equity interest
(actual capital investment at the time of drawdown) in China City Natural
Gas Co., Ltd. ("CCNG") as security for an other borrowing of HK$700
million. After the statement of financial position date, the pledged part of
CCNG equity interest has been released as the Company has repaid the
other borrowing in full during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2014, certain financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale financial assets of the Group are pledged as
securities for certain banking facilities of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no material contingent liability as at 31 December 2014.

Financial Management and Treasury Policy

The financial risk management of the Group is the responsibility of the
Group's treasury function at the head office in Hong Kong. One of the
major objectives of the Group’s treasury policies is to manage its exposure
to fluctuation in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. It is the
Group's policy not to engage in speculative activities.

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group's certain
bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, and the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior notes are
denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Canadian dollars.

Other than those disclosed, the Group does not have any material exposures
to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and may, depending on the circumstances and trend of
foreign currencies, consider adopting a significant foreign currency hedging
policy in the future.

Litigation

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has no litigation.

Capital Structure

During the year, a total of 48,860,000 share options had been exercised
by the employees and one director of the Group at the exercise price of
HK$0.43 per Share and 250,000,000 Shares had been issued under the
share award scheme.

As at 31 December 2014, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$52,995,762 divided into 5,299,576,213 Shares with a nominal value of
HK$0.01 each.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EEREE/GN

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board of the Company on 30 August 2006. He was also
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 4 November
2009. Mr. Xu is the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company (the “CG Committee”) and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Xu graduated from Xi'an Shiyou University (7% 7
KE) and University of International Business and Economics ($/4MEEE 5
AE), he is a certified public accountant and lawyer. Mr. Xu has 26 years’
experience in management, investments, legal and finance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Yuan, aged 62, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 10 September 2010. He was appointed as the senior vice
president of the Company on 4 November 2009. Mr. Zhu is a member of
the CG Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
graduated from China University of Mining And Technology and is a certified
senior accountant. He is engaged in oil and gas industries for over 40 years,
and has deep research and extensive experience in investment and operation
of the usage of natural gas, city gas and liquefied natural gas projects.

Ms. Guan Yijun, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 10 September 2010. She was appointed as the vice president
of the Company on 1 September 2006. Ms. Guan is a member of the CG
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She
graduated from Changchun Normal University and has extensive business
operation management experiences for almost 20 years.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Cheung Shing, aged 62, was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 13 January 2006. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Cheung is a member of each of the CG Committee,
the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”).
He worked in China Petroleum Qilu Petrochemical Refinery (FFBIA/HEE
AL BEREL), China Petroleum Shengli Oilfield (7R B A M B FMA), China
Petroleum Zhongyuan Oilfield (FFEIAEF RAE) and has ever been a
management economist of China National Petroleum Corporation (B
SHRIAZEEAT]) ("CNPC”) during the period between 1969 and 1993.
He was the chairman of each of Wah Chung (HK) Limited GEFR (B7%)
AMRAT]), Henan Shenghua Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (AIEEBIERML
TAMRRAF]) and Liaoning Xinmin Petroleum Company Limited during the
period between 1993 and 2004. Mr. Cheung was the deputy chairman and
an executive director of Yanchang Petroleum International Limited (stock
code: 346), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from January 2007
to September 2010 and from February 2005 to October 2010 respectively.
He was the chairman and an executive director of Birmingham International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from February 2014 to March 2015 and May 2013 to March 2015
respectively. He is also currently a visiting lecturer of Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics, the vice president of Hong Kong General Association
of International Investment (H/BBIFRI% & 475 E) and the vice president of
China Petroleum Business Council (FEIAHMEKIEEE).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Yunlong, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 April 2008. He is the chairman of each of
the Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Li graduated from the Accounting School of Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (PRI EBUE R ZE & 52 0t) with a Bachelor Degree in
Economics. Mr. Li is a registered certified public accountant in the PRC and
possesses the qualification of PRC senior auditor. Mr. Li had been working
at the National Audit Office of the PRC for over 16 years in various audit
departments, and he is currently a partner of Hua Wen CPA Ltd (FER &5t
B FT) in the PRC. He is the financial consultant of various companies in
the PRC, and an independent director of Sichuan Xichang Electric Power Co.,
Ltd. (P9)I|FAEE ik BR A R]) and Sichuan Tuopai Shede Wine Co., Ltd.
(9)IPER2 RSB ER D AR AR]), both companies listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. He is being a national financial expert of The Ministry of
Science and Technology of the PRC. He has extensive experience in legal,
accounting, auditing and finance aspects.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EEREE/GN

Mr. Shi Xun-zhi, aged 80, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 30 August 2006. He is a member of the
Audit Committee. He is a deputy minister and a professor senior engineer.
He has been awarded the Youth and Mature Scientist with outstanding
contributions by the State Council. He graduated from Petroleum Institute of
Beijing (1L A MERT) (renamed as China University of Petroleum, Beijing)
(FREAHEAZ (4550)) in 1956 in the profession of petroleum geology. He
worked as geology engineer, associate director of the technology division,
director of human resources division, supervisor in the Ministry of Petroleum
Industry, CNPC president’s special assistant and also a member of the
Ninth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He had been the
chairman of CNPC Sino-Russian Oil & Gas Corporation Committee and
the chairman of China National Oil & Gas Exploration and Development
Corporation (FBI/AmENIEEFEEAF]) and the chairman of CNPA Alberta
Petroleum Center (Bl NE KM EIAEAAF L), and the president of
Northeast Asian Gas And Pipeline Forum and the president of Asia Gas
& Pipeline Cooperation Research Center of China, responsible for the oil
and gas works between China and Russia, and worked on the overseas
petroleum exploration and development as well as international cooperation
work.

Mr. Wang Guangtian, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 4 November 2009. He is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He holds a master's degree
in world economics from the Hebei University and has over 30 years of
experience in financial and administrative management. He is currently the
managing director of Guofu Group and a director and the general manager
of Guofu (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited. He is also currently an independent
non-executive director of ENN Energy Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in investments in natural gas and energy related
businesses.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state of
affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 52 to 187.

FINAL DIVIDEND BY WAY OF BONUS ISSUE OF
SHARES

The Board resolved to recommend to the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Tuesday, 26 May 2015 (“2015 AGM") a final dividend by way of bonus
issue of new share of HK$0.01 each (the “Share”) on the basis of one bonus
Share for every ten Shares (2013: cash dividend of HK cent 0.72 per Share)
to those shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Tuesday, 2 June 2015 (the “Bonus Issue”). The final
dividend in 2013 amounted to approximately HK$36,005,000.

The Bonus Issue will be credited as fully paid by way of capitalisation of an
amount of approximately HK$5,300,000 in the share premium account of
the Company.

Report of the Directors
EERES

EERMAREREZHEERAATMEMBER
A(KEDBE-_T-NOF+-_A=1T—BLtF
B2 RECIRATEERE -

EX:F 30

RAZEIBEBRNERER - KB X ERERK
RARKBERERAET 2 RE -

FAKRDE

EEEE—T-NF+_A=T—ALFEZH
MESERE B ZEHIRABR G MBERRE
52X 1874 °

LUAL IR B2 1T IR 19 2 5 UK B R B IR

cN

EERFABNR -_ZE-—RAFRA-tT A (EH
D)BRTHAREERFEEAFAS([ZE—RF
REBFRE]) L AARKREEZEALRELT
FRRO.0VBTITZFBRMG ([B’H DA RIRER
RS - HEAFTHE TG B HE —RAR
(ZE2—=F: FRRSWB0.72781) - mMEH
BEHREERTFTR-_Z—AENA-H(EH )R
I ARIRER A MR E ([ARREEIT]) - —T—=
F R HPAR B 45 36,005,000 7T ©

ABETEARABRDEEERS BHY
5,300,000 B LT E AR 2 FRNARIESR ©

FHRREEER AR 2014FF3R “ :




Report of the Directors
EEHRES

(continued) (#&)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the identity of the shareholders to attend and vote at the
2015 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 22 May 2015 to Tuesday, 26 May 2015 (both days inclusive) during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the 2015 AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 21 May 2015.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed final
dividend by way of Bonus Issue, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 1 June 2015 to Tuesday, 2 June 2015 (both
days inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the proposed Bonus Issue, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 29 May 2015.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 188. This
summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and results by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) on 31 January 2002 and terminated the same at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 November 2011 (“SGM"),
details of the Old Share Option Scheme are set out in note 33(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 at the SGM, details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 33(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 4 November 2011, the Board adopted a restricted share award scheme
(the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give incentives in order to retain them for
their continuing operation and development and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group, details of the Restricted Share Award
Scheme are set out in note 33(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-Laws") or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2014, other than those purchased by the trustee for the Restricted Share
Award Scheme.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of HK$32,960,000 may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares, and the Company’s
contributed surplus account in the amount of HK$1,520,328,000 may be
distributed under certain circumstances.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

BE BOHIHERAALHRES

BEFEABREIERG RO AFE 2N A
AREEANBAARBE-S—MF+= 7
ST-BULFETERE  BERLEANEE
EES -

Al ok 1E
RIZE—NFE+_A=+—H 280 EEZ
#E BR © %8 32,960,000 78 7T A #2 A B AT AR 2 =X
Dk MAREHMBHRIESREE1,520,328,00078
TTEHRTE RN TSR
FEXFPRMUEER

SEXEHEBRREPRAEZRERBERERD
DEI

2014 2013
—F-mF —E=F
% %
Purchases REE
— the largest supplier —ERAHER 328 47.1
— five largest suppliers combined — A EEERT 70.9 80.8
Turnover X
— the largest customer —HARP 3.1 1.8
— five largest customers combined —hAREFP&R 9.1 7.7

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)) or any shareholders
(who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five
largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
ZHU Yuan

GUAN Yijun

CHEUNG Shing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
LI Yunlong

SHI Xun-zhi

WANG Guangtian

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws, Ms. Guan Yijun, Mr.
Shi Xun-zhi and Mr. Wang Guangtian shall retire from office as Directors
by rotation at the 2015 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES”
and “RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME" above and in notes 33(b) and
(c) to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Xu Tie-liang entered into a service contract with the Company on 10
April 2014 for a term of three years commencing from 10 April 2014. The
appointment of Mr. Xu can be terminated by six months’ advance notice in
writing by either party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2015
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Group
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"), are set out below:
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Interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
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RABZRED - HERORES 2ERS

Approximate
percentage of the

Company’s issued

Number of share capital

Long position/ ordinary A Amount of
Name of Director Capacity short position Notes shares held ERTRA  debentures held
B2p L) R/ %A fiet BELERYA BRESL  FRESEE
Xu Tie-liang Interest in controlled corporations Long position 1,2 1,152,078,300 21.74 US$3,000,000
FHER REHIEE 2 s iR 3,000,000% 7
Zhu Yuan Beneficial owner Long position 3 2,500,000 0.05 -
K& EREEA i
Cheung Shing Beneficial owner Long position 1,380,000 0.03 -
RREE ERBEAA 8
Notes: Bz

1.

321,018,300 ordinary shares and 831,060,000 ordinary shares of the Company
are held through Sino Advance Holdings Limited (“Sino Advance”) and Sino
Vantage Management Limited (“Sino Vantage”) respectively, both of which
were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and are
wholly-owned by Sino Best International Group Limited (“Sino Best”) (a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability) which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang.

An amount of US$3,000,000 of the US$350,000,000 5.25% senior notes of the
Company due 2018 are held through Sino Vantage.

These 2,500,000 shares include (1) 2,100,000 ordinary shares of the Company
held by Mr. Zhu Yuan; and (2) 400,000 restricted shares granted to Mr. Zhu
Yuan pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

%38 Sino Advance Holdings Limited (['Sino Advance)
T Sino Vantage Management Limited ([ Sino Vantage |)
D RFFE R FI321,018 300% 1A% 52831,060,0008%
TAR(ZMERAANEATEBERRES T
MR ERART AT REFERBR AR
(THRER ] (ERBHRREESTMRINE
RAR)ZEHRE - MAREBFRIBTKREE
2EREREA)

#iBSino VantagefF A A AR =T — /VE F
HAZR© 4856 350,000,000 C5.25% B A ZH 2
3,000,000 %7 °

#%%2,500,000 Rl BIE() REAEFEHA
712,100,000 & EBARAR 1 ¢ K (2) R HRBR il 14 A%
1 8RBT 8% T AR R S £ ) 400,000 BR IR i) 14 A%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2014, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors and chief
executives, the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

FER

RZZ-—ME+-A=+—0B REFFIHE
GPIE 336 IRARAIFE T ERRELAMEA
R BEXHBEBREETESERIBTRABRZE
@I UTRREBHAARNENAFDETRA
Tz FERA L

RARRG REBERD 2 EE

Approximate
percentage of the

Company'’s issued

Number of share capital

Name of Long position/ ordinary EAT

shareholder Capacity short position Notes shares held 2BITRAE

BREREE BB BH HR KR lioga KEEBERHE BMHOBEDE

Sino Advance Beneficial owner Long position 1 321,018,300 6.06
EREBA e

Sino Vantage Beneficial owner Long position 1 831,060,000 15.68
EmBEBA oy

Sino Best Interest in controlled corporations Long position 1 1,152,078,300 21.74
2B SEHER 2 e

Artisan Partners Investment manager Long position 2 488,140,000 9.21
Limited BEEEA sy}

(Partnership)

Artisan Partners Investment manager Long position 2 488,140,000 9.21
Holdings LP WEEEA HE

Artisan Investment manager Long position 2 488,140,000 9.21
Partners Asset & EEIZA e

Management Inc.
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Notes:

1. Sino Advance and Sino Vantage are wholly-owned by Sino Best which in turn is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang. Hence, Mr. Xu is deemed to
be interested in 321,018,300 ordinary shares and 831,060,000 ordinary shares
of the Company held through Sino Advance and Sino Vantage.

2. 488,140,000 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Artisan Partners
Limited (Partnership) as investment manager which is wholly-owned by Artisan
Partners Holdings LP which in turn is wholly-owned by Artisan Partners Asset
Management Inc.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2014.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into several transactions with entities which are
connected persons (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the
Company, and such transactions constitute connected transaction and
continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Connected transaction

On 5 January 2011, the Company as borrower entered into a loan
agreement with the Lender (Note 1) and Zhongda Industrial Group Inc. and
Alta Financial Holdings Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company)
as guarantors (the “Guarantors”) in relation to the granting of a loan
secured by an equity pledge in the amount of HK$700,000,000 (the “Loan”)
to the Company by the Lender for five years at an annual interest rate of
3.7% payable half yearly.

The Loan (together with accrued interests) was fully repaid in November
2014.

Exempt continuing connected transaction

The following continuing connected transaction constitutes an exempt
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

Appointment of Trustee for Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Trustee (Note 2) was appointed by the Company as trustee for the
administration of the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted by the Board
on 4 November 2011. Service fee will be payable by the Company to the
Trustee according to the share award trust deed entered into between the
Company and the Trustee on 4 November 2011. The payment of the service
fees to the Trustee by the Company constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company, but is exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

HK$200,000 was paid/payable to the Trustee for the financial year ended 31
December 2014.
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Notes:

1. China Petroleum HongKong (Holding) Limited (the “Lender”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China National Petroleum Corporation (B AAA
REBEAF]) (which indirectly owns approximately 61.76% of the issued
share capital of Kunlun Energy Company Limited which in turn owns
49% equity interest in R R RIZE LB BR AT (China City Natural Gas
Co. Limited), a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, which is therefore a
connected person of the Company.

2. Best Thinker Limited (the “Trustee”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Xu Tie-
liang, an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, which is therefore a connected person of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year and
up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 35 to 49 of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998 with written terms
of reference in compliance with Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman),
Mr. Shi Xun-zhi and Mr. Wang Guangtian. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2015 AGM to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance standard
and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure
in order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company was in compliance
with the relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code except for the
deviations as explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the responsibilities
between chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. Mr. Xu Tie-
liang is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning for the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately
ensured by current Board which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals with sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive
Directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term,
but they are subject to retirement from office by rotation at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors shall attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Li Yunlong, Mr. Shi Xun-zhi and Mr. Wang Guangtian,
independent non-executive Directors, did not attend the 2014 annual
general meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2014 (“2014 AGM") by
the reason of their engagement in own official business.
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Code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code requires that the Company should
have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out the key terms
and conditions of their appointment. The Company did not have formal
letters of appointment for Directors (except for Mr. Xu Tie-liang). However,
the Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Bye-Laws. In addition, the Directors are required to refer to the guidelines
set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry
and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-executive
Directors” (if applicable) published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
in performing their duties and responsibilities as Directors. Besides, the
Directors are required to comply with the requirements under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and
the Company’s business and governance policies.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees
(as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite another member
of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
Mr. Li Yunlong, the chairman of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, and Mr. Wang Guangtian, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company, did not attend the
2014 AGM due to their engagement in their own official business.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
met all code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company,
and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing
the operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational
and financial matters. The management was delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In
addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
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The Board currently consists of seven Directors including four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHU Yuan

Ms. GUAN Yijun

Mr. CHEUNG Shing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LI Yunlong

Mr. SHI Xun-zhi

Mr. WANG Guangtian

Save for Ms. Guan Yijun is the spouse of Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition is formed to
ensure strong independence exists across the Board. The composition of the
Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out on pages 20 to 22
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”.

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall business plans
and evaluates the Group's financial performance and management. Specific
tasks that the Board delegates to the Group’s management include the
implementation of strategies approved by the Board, the monitoring of
operating budgets, the implementation of internal controls procedures, and
the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the financial year ended 31
December 2014 to the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out below:

Name of Director

HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=1+—HILFEMZES
EXZARSEIREEIIMT

Attending or participating in seminars/

in-house briefing or reading materials relevant to

the Group’s business/director’s duties

HERSEEREEYE

BEEHR ESHEREEE I RS MR
Mr. XU Tie-liang FFERR A v
Mr. ZHU Yuan K OBEE v
Ms. GUAN Yijun BMsELL v
Mr. CHEUNG Shing K AL v
Mr. LI Yunlong FEERE v
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SIS E v
Mr. WANG Guangtian TERLE v

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have a separate chairman and chief executive officer
and Mr. Xu Tie-liang currently performs these two roles. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the
Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for
the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for
the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by
current Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with
sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive Directors.

Non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber,
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting,
finance and petroleum. With their experience gained from various sectors,
they provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties
and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-executive Director
gives an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the
Company considered each of them meets the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is independent under Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific term,
but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 26 August 2013 (the
"Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level will
support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including, but not limited, to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Policy to the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the
measurable objectives for implementing the Policy from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Board Meetings

The Board has four scheduled meetings a year at quarterly interval and
additional meetings will be held as and when required. The four scheduled
Board meetings for a year are planned in advance. During the regular
meetings of the Board, the Board reviewed the operation and financial
performance and reviewed and approved the annual and interim results.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board held 11 meetings. All
Directors are given an opportunity to include any matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings, and are given sufficient time to review documents
and information relating to matters to be discussed in Board meetings in
advance.

Name of Director

HE-_Z-—HWF+-_A=+—HILFE  EF3
RRITNREE MAEFHARSIEERZ
BWANEZRERNEZEEAN  FLUBEHRT
DEMENEEEREEN TR IETERRLZ
SHEREHR -

Number of attendance

BEEHR HEERRH
Mr. XU Tie-liang AR A 11/11
Mr. ZHU Yuan Kk EEAE 11/11
Ms. GUAN Yijun BRELZLT 11/11
Mr. CHEUNG Shing R®OAEE 1111
Mr. LI Yunlong TEEEE 11/11
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEEIFEE 11/11
Mr. WANG Guangtian TEREE 1/11

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

General Meetings
During the year ended 31 December 2014, 1 general meeting of the

Company, being 2014 AGM, was held on 29 May 2014.

Name of Director

EEXEREHCHARRANERT  YAHEES
Bl - BREZRRBHEREHESERXF A
BER  MAETXRGTREARWEZER
RERERSE  AARFERHIRINAEEE
H o

BRERRE
HE_Z-—HNF+_A=+—HILFE 2F7K%
“E-EFRATARBTIRARERARG (Bl
E-NERRBFAG) -

Number of attendance

BEEHR HERE
Mr. XU Tie-liang AR A 171
Mr. ZHU Yuan Kk BEAE 11
Ms. GUAN Yijun BRELZLT 11
Mr. CHEUNG Shing K KEAE 1”1
Mr. LI Yunlong TEEEAE 0/1
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEEIHEE 0/1
Mr. WANG Guangtian TEREE 0/1

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other general
meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation. Mr.
Xu Tie-liang, being the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the CG
Committee, attended the 2014 AGM to answer questions and collect views
of shareholders.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates, especially their experience in the
natural gas industry and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference on 15 March 2006 and currently consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. WANG Guangtian (as chairman) and Mr. LI
Yunlong, and one executive Director, namely Mr. CHEUNG Shing. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference adopted by the Nomination Committee are aligned with
the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The function of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor the
structure, size and diversity of the Board and made recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Group'’s strategy;
to identify qualified individuals to become members of the Board; to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Policy, the
progress on achieving the objectives; and to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board composition,
assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
considered and made recommendation on the re-election of Directors.

Name of member
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Number of attendance

REHE HESRRH
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREMELE 11
Mr. LI Yunlong FERESLAE 11
Mr. CHEUNG Shing Gk RSEAE 11
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference on 13 January 2006 and currently consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LI Yunlong (as chairman) and Mr.
WANG Guangtian, and one executive Director, namely Mr. CHEUNG Shing.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is currently made
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference adopted by the Remuneration Committee are aligned
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee
held 2 meetings. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management and the service contract
of an executive Director.

Name of member

EEREREEENE

RRAER-_TERNFE-A+T=ZBRIFMEZE
g YR EEMRBERE - FMEESRHBWE
BIFMTEEFERAEEETIRE) LTER
A AR BMITEERKEEERK

i B & o B S B IR A B S P AB VS ) A A
ABULEB]

HENZ B EATIRMNBERES S hXEATA
IR T BIMEST

L BB Al EE AR RES
P38 M = AR E T2 B BN e BUR M R LA Rt 3R
HEHFMEERNER LBEREFREEBIRME
B -

HE-Z-—WF+-RA=+—HIFE - HME
BEERIT2RER - FHZESRIEERS
REBEHMTENANLRTEZEZRBEEL -

Number of attendance

REHE HESRRE
Mr. LI Yunlong TEEEE 2/2
Mr. WANG Guangtian TERLE 2/2
Mr. CHEUNG Shing Bk KEAE 2/2

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 November 2011.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to grant
options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. The Board adopted the Restricted Share Award
Scheme on 4 November 2011 as an incentive to recognise the contributions
by employees and to give incentives in order to retain them for their
continuing operation and development and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Award Scheme
are set out in notes 33(b) and (c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will depend
on their respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if
any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing
market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. LI Yunlong (as chairman), Mr. SHI Xun-zhi and Mr. WANG Guangtian.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference adopted by the Audit Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of such
auditor; reviewing the interim and annual reports and financial statements
of the Group; and overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
in charge of the Company’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget, and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area
of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices
but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
the legal requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual
report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.

Name of member

Number of attendance

REEE HEERAE
Mr. LI Yunlong TEEEAE 2/2
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SRS E 2/2
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREEEE 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual and interim results of the Group, which were in the opinion of
the Audit Committee that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing internal control system of the Group
and also noted that review of the same will be carried out annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established the CG Committee, with written terms of
reference, on 20 March 2012. The CG Committee comprises four executive
Directors, namely Mr. XU Tie-liang (as chairman), Mr. ZHU Yuan, Ms. GUAN
Yijun and Mr. CHEUNG Shing, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
Ms. LAW Yin Shan, Jenny and the Company Secretary of the Company, Ms.
CHAN Yuen Ying, Stella.

Terms of reference adopted by the CG Committee is aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board; to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014

HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=1+—RHILFE  BZZ
BeRMEE 2FRPHEE  RERZES
ZER wERFFRETAEMASIER LR
AN -

ERZECGCEERBEZRARNEESE -
FIWHH AR IR -

TEERETES
NARZE——F=ZA-+HRIGEERZE
g WA TEAMESHE - ;XERZEETAN

BAHWITESFRRELE (BEEXR) - KEKE -
BB R T RRKEE - ARSI KA ERM X
TRABZREMEREEE L AR

TCRERZBEEMEANBESENSSEEER
SF AR AT R ST RIMESC -

EEERZESNBERSIE Mg ARBERE
EXERNHERERAGA EEERTRI MM
FERIRERT  UMEERRMEREE &
RARMEENBRE  RAREEEERER
EEEMNBIIRFEERER  HIE - gk
ERREREFEANRETTRRARTM (A
B) BREARREXREABREANKESE -




Corporate Governance Report

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the CG Committee
held 1 meeting. The CG Committee reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; and also
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Name of member
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Number of attendance

REHEA HESERE
Mr. XU Tie-liang FTERR A 11
Mr. ZHU Yuan K OEBEREAE 11
Ms. GUAN Yijun BEE Lzt 1/1
Mr. CHEUNG Shing sk RKSEAE 11
Ms. LAW Yin Shan, Jenny frdechiipeann 11
Ms. CHAN Yuen Ying, Stella PRI A+ 1”1

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor is
set out below:—

Services rendered

BTN

REERN - BB A RIZEED 2 Bl #5140
™

Fee paid/payable

PR AR 3% o, ENE

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services BAZRTE 2,200
Non-audit services: FEBEZRIE ¢

— Interim review of financial statements — B ERER 2 P EAZR B 700

— Financial and tax due diligence — B RS EERES 1,144

— Others —HAb 907

4,951
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist
the Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
different commercial needs.

Ms. CHAN Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan"), the representative of Uni-1, was
appointed as the named Company Secretary of the Company.

Ms. LAW Yin Shan, Jenny, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is
the primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.
According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual
general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings.

Shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies
Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to convene a special
general meeting are set out in the document entitled “Procedures for
a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a Director”, which is
currently available on the Company’s website.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may send written enquires to the Company for

the attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at
shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited,
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving
notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary statement, at
the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:—

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks
before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the necessary
procedures.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2015 AGM wiill be voted by poll.
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(continued) (4&)

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication
and reasonable disclosure of information to its shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the
following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on
the Stock Exchange website, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

o The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the CG
Committee, attended the 2014 AGM to answer questions of the meeting
and collect views of shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and
of the results and cash flows of the Group for that year. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

Management had implemented a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded, proper
accounting records are maintained, appropriate legislation and regulations
are complied with, reliable financial information are provided for
management and publication purpose and investment and business risks
affecting the Group are identified and managed.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has conducted a
review of the system of internal control to ensure the effectiveness and
adequacy of the system. The Board shall conduct such review at least once
annually.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRES

.
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Oil And
Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 52 to 187, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwec

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meZHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_ZT-—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
bz FHER FAT
Revenue - 6 7,697,811 6,439,825
Cost of sales SHEM A (6,544,604) (4,985,630)
Gross profit EF 1,153,207 1,454,195
Other income EaUA 7 47,657 37,575
Other gains/(losses), net Hbukas (E518) @ B3 8 50,430 (18,132)
Selling and distribution costs HERDIEER (61,775) (57,719)
Administrative expenses 1THRAX (332,583) (218,235)
Operating profit A m A 9 856,936 1,197,684
Interest income FEUA 10 125,371 99,603
Finance costs MIEER 10 (135,860) (114,674)
Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture EIE—REA SRR, (BE) 9,228 (3,212)
Share of loss of an associate FE(E— = A AlE1E (1,512) (861)
Profit before taxation BRA% A& A 854,163 1,178,540
Taxation FiE 12 (217,565) (240,945)
Profit for the year F_sM 636,598 937,595
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hib2m (E58), IR
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A]E #7482 1Eas 978 H
Currency translation differences BEBmEEE (144,762) 111,235
Fair value changes from available- AL EVBEEA T EE
for-sale financial assets (11,033) (16,042)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, Hih 2 (58) s
net of tax G0 (155,795) 95193
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEE LR 480,803 1,032,788
Profit for the year attributable to: FREERT :
Owners of the Company UNEIE 2SN 308,650 401,494
Non-controlling interests IR A 327,948 536,101
636,598 937,595
Total comprehensive income FAEMEERGEEEE
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company NREA A 152,855 451,663
Non-controlling interests IR R A 327,948 581,125
480,803 1,032,788
Earnings per share for profit attributable NEER A A FAREF]
to owners of the Company 15
— Basic (HK cents) —EAR GBI 6.234 8.142
— Diluted (HK cents) — 58 (Bl 6.195 8.062

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014

BEP 2 M EE A ANAR B ISR 2 AR ED 7




)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B ISR 2R

As at 31 December 2014
R_ZE—NF+=-_F=+—8H

2014 2013
—ZT—mF =%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MI5E FET FHET
Non-current assets IEREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B k& 16 6,883,531 3,712,892
Exploration and evaluation assets RN EE 17 222,655 =
Land use rights i A 18 253,663 192,365
Intangible assets mAE 19 1,071,912 1,072,227
Interest in an associate S NI 21 4,650 6,162
Interest in a joint venture R—HE&EEEER 21 50,459 41,231
Available-for-sale financial assets A HE IS EE 22 585,211 835,011
Other non-current assets HEMIERENEE 24 968,436 870,710
Deferred tax assets EETIEEE 31 5,643 =
10,046,160 6,730,598
Current assets MENEE
Inventories T8 23 195,603 185,926
Deposits, trade and other receivables e - B 5 REAMEKGIA 24 1,474,664 921,344
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEER AR
profit or loss g EE 25 53,859 145,812
Current tax recoverable &R eI 31,867 =
Time deposits with maturity over R ERBB =AM
three months TE AT X 26 973,739 795,427
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EFEEE 26 2,691,557 3,377,551
5,421,289 5,426,060
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMFERFIA 27 1,680,480 859,804
Receipt in advance T GRIA 28 1,229,109 1,006,593
Short-term borrowings EHEE 29 808,379 708,500
Current tax payable = HApE S TIR 137,664 105,572
3,855,632 2,680,469
Net current assets MENEEFEE 1,565,657 2,745,591
Total assets less current liabilities BERTBRARDEE 11,611,817 9,476,189

FHRREERRAR




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BRI R
As at 31 December 2014
RZE—MNF+=ZA=+—H

(continued) (#&)

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FTERT FHT
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Long-term borrowings RHEE 29 - 954,000
Senior notes BERE 30 4,978,675 2,672,082
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIRRE 31 419,090 23,960
Other non-current liabilities HitbIEmBEE 32 121,303 -
5,519,068 3,650,042
Net assets FRE 6,092,749 5,826,147
Equity M
Equity attributable to owners NEER AER RS
of the Company
Share capital &N 33 52,996 50,007
Reserves Hif 3,548,111 3,497,373
3,601,107 3,547,380
Non-controlling interests FEERR R A 2,491,642 2,278,767
Total equity AR 6,092,749 5,826,147
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for BEMBRERNR_Z—AF=A=THEEER
issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2015. o R -
Xu Tie-liang Zhu Yuan R KB
Director Director EF BE
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial BEMS 2 Bt sk R AR & ISR 2 R E 5 o
statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

B ISR &

As at 31 December 2014
R_ZE—NF+=-_F=+—8H

2014 2013
—E—OF —ET—=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mo aE T FHET
Non-current assets IEREEAE
Intangible assets | EE 19 1,702 1,702
Interests in subsidiaries R EENGIL F 20 5,926,515 4,085,830
928217 4,087,532
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H A e RIE 24 25,353 23,980
Financial assets at fair value AT ELERARSZ
through profit or loss HIEEE 25 - 33,138
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EFMEEE 26 373,801 923,410
399,154 980,528
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables H b FE5RIE 27 46,143 28,262
Net current assets nEeEEFE 353011 952,266
Total assets less current liabilities mEERRBRE 0000000 6,281,228 5,039,798
Non-current liabilities JEREAaE
Long-term borrowings REEE 29 - 700,000
Senior notes BAEEE 30 4,978,675 2,672,082
I 4978675 3,372,082
Net assets BEFE 1,302,553 1,667,716
Equity W
Equity attributable to owners NAEEB AEGER
of the Company
Share capital A& A 33 52,996 50,007
Reserves i 34 1,249,557 1,617,709
Total equity iR 1,302,553 1,667,716

MBHREAR _—Z-—AF=A=+tRESERILE
KR RETE -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2015.

Zhu Yuan AR KRB
Director 2 EBZE

Xu Tie-liang
Director

BEM 2 M S E R AR A B IS IR 2 AR E D -

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f Zs:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—M&+_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AFEBAEL
Shares
held for
share (Note)  Exchange  Share-based Non-
Share Share award Other  fluctuation compensation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium scheme — resenves Teserve Teserve profits Total  interests equity
Ak Win A

g (b  EiED ER0Me
B BiEE  ARED  AER L G 8% REE  BEER
HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HK$000  HKS00  HKS'000
TR TEn TR TRn  TRn  TEn TR TR TEL TR

At1 January 2013 R-8-=£-A-H 49,654 1,572,081 (10993 167394 228360 15461 1157834 3179791  12847,039 5026830
Profit for the year Ly - - - - - - 401494 4ondos 53000 93759
Other comprehensive income: Ef2EYHA
Eichange differences on translating REBNSB R

foreign operations - - - - 66,211 - - 66,211 504 111235
Fairvalue changes from avallable- TRLENBERLATERD

for-sale financial assets - - - (16042) - - - (16,042) - (16042)
Total comprehensive income for the year EREANGEE - - - (16040 6621 - 01494 451663 581125 1032788
Isse of shares upon exercise of share options REREEAEREARA B 019 - - - 1369 - 1518 - 1518
Equity-setled share-based payments WEREENRHARR AR - - 543 - - 300 - 3613 - 3613
Shares purchased for share award scheme R RERHBERD - - (54810 - - - - (54810 - (54810
Capital injection by non-controlling interests FRER TR - - - - - - - -5 5138
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests SULENE A - - - - - - - - (19,1100 (198.110)
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2=F-—%#+-A=1-A

IFEZASRE - - - B - - - B - B

Changes in the ownership interests in subsidiaries that X &£ HE5IEHIB A

do not result n aloss of control fiEkEREY - - - 1) - - - @) e (355
Others Efp = = = (14,865) - - - (14.865) - (14865
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=#+-A=1-H 50,007 1,594,280 (652600 103,291 294571 11,163 1559328 3547380 2218767  5826,147
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—NE+_A=+—HILFE

(continued) (#)

Attributable to owners of the Company

PELEIN 1
Shares
held for
share (Note)  Exchange Share-based Non-
Share Share  award Other fluctuation compensation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  scheme  reserves  reseve  reserve profits Total interests equity
BBf WA

REAE (W2 EXRD EENRe
Bx  BHER  FRRG RMER B i REER BE ERRE  RugE
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSQ00  HKS000
Thn R TER TR 0 TEn 0 TR AR fER TR TER

At 1 January 2014 NZT-ME-A-A 50,007 1,594,280 (65,2600 103201 294,571 11163 1559328 3547380 2218767 5,826,147
Profit for the year ERgAl - - - - - - 308650 308650 327,948 636598
Other comprehensive income: Hfp2EYA
Exchange differences on translating BERIZH RN ER

foreign operations - - - - (144762) - - (144762) - (144762)
Fair value changes from avallable- TR BEEATERS

for-sale financial assets - - - (1103%) - - - (1103) - (1103)
Total comprehensive income for the year EReENGaEE - - - (1103)  (144762) - 30865 1285 327948 480,803
lsue of shares upon exercise of share ptions REREEAEREARA 8 390 - - - (1) - -
Shares issued for share award scheme ARNEEEERRG 2500 - (2500 - - - - - - -
Equitysettled share-based payments WEREENRNAEEZ MR - - 2782 - - 1,275 - 4,057 - 4,057
Shares purchased for share award scheme ERhREEEERR - - (85897) - - - - (85890) - (85890)
Capital injection by non-controlling interests FaRER TR - - - - - - - - T4 13304
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests SHREFHERER - - - - - - - - (185520)  (185,520)
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z-F—=£+-A=1-H

HERRAERE = - - (38,014) - - - (38,014) - (38,014)

Changes in the ownership interests n subsidiaris ~ NEEEIHIENHER

that do not resultin a loss of control fiakRaE - - - (285) - - - )  @8%1) (3w
Reduction of share premium allowance (Note 34b) BRI ERE (Ht34p) - (1,594,280) - 148 - - = = =
At 31 December 2014 ey 102 o 52,99 3290 (150875 1,526,112 149,809 - 1990105 3,601,107 2491642 6,092,749
Note: Bt
As at 31 December 2014, other reserves mainly comprise capital and other reserve RZZE—NMFE+—A=+—H EMFHEETES
amounting to HK$55,536,000 (2013: HK$66,854,000) and contribution surplus FEE A K H % 555,536,000 T( =T — =4 :
amounting to HK$1,470,576,000 (2013: HK$36,437,000). 66,854,000/ 7T ) KA B84 1,470,576,000/8 L (= F

— =% :36,437,000/87T) °

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial BEMt 2 B s R AR GR S B TS HRaR 2 AR ©

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= ==
FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—M&E+_A=+—HIEFE

2014 2013
—E—IF ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAxT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBHERE
Profit for the year F R 636,598 937,595
Adjustments for: HTHSIEEL AR
Taxation IR 217,565 240,945
Finance costs W5 A 135,860 114,674
Interest income FEHA (125,371) (99,603)
Dividend income from listed securities RS2 R EMRA (573) (4,720)
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—RA ¥R (9,228) 3,212
Share of loss of an associate FEME—EER & A RES1E 1,512 861
Equity-settled share-based payments LARE 2= 45 B LAt /B B 2 RT3R 4,057 3,613
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAb &8 E g 1,442 1,398
Depreciation and depletion of property, Y - BRE REETTE RIERE
plant and equipment 363,732 187,032
Amortisation of land use rights b FRAERE 4H 5,651 3,070
Losses/(gains) on disposals of property, HEWZE - BRE RE#EEE (ka)
plant and equipment 547 (1,116)
Fair value losses on financial assets BAFELES AR MBEE
at fair value through profit or loss NFERE 237 24,931
Losses/(gains) on disposal of financial HER AT ELIBEARN
assets at fair value through profit or loss IS EERE,(Mas) 8,021 (6,799)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HE S AT B G s
financial assets (17,146) -
Gain on bargain purchase HEUE R (37,497) =
1,185,407 1,405,093
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets BATELERARZUGEEE
at fair value through profit or loss () 83,695 (29,546)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (gm),w (9.677) 44,084
Increase in deposits, trade and e« B5REMEREIE
other receivables N (657,759) (220,603)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N H A S FRIEIE AN 277,072 1,513
Increase/(decrease) in receipt in advance FEUR R IBIE A1, G d) 222,516 (167,254)
Decrease in non-current liabilities R E B (23,161) =
Cash generated from operations KEEBEEZRE 1,078,093 1,033,267
Taxation paid [=ERE2E (194,055) (201,446)
Net cash generated from operating activities &&EFELZ RS FEHE 884,038 831,821
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_ZT-—NFE+—_A=1+—HILFE
(continued) (#&)

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET FAT
Cash flows from investing activities KETBHEHRERE
Interest received SE @RS 102,845 62,720
Dividend received B E 573 4,720
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE - BEREE -
equipment and land use rights and b {5 R A SR TR R AR
prepaid construction costs (1,189,291) (1,176,964)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEKEE
plant and equipment Fr8 5838 4,673 2,955
Purchases of other intangible assets and BEHMEREERMER
prepaid of intangible assets BETENHKIEA (8,449) (16,573)
Purchases of available-for-sale BERHLEMBEE
financial assets - (327,379)
Proceeds from disposal of S ATt S B IS B EEFTIS FRIA
available-for-sale financial assets 520,913 -
Acquisition of Baccalieu L Baccalieu 35 (1,708,600) -
Repayment of loan to non-controlling RS EREE R
interest - 12,700
Increase in time deposits with maturity TR ERRA = & A A E HR
over three months FERaEn (178,312) (63,665)
Net cash used in investing activities WEREFTAR S F5 (2,455,648) (1,501,486)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBHEERE
Share issued upon exercise BRIA Tk A AR 1 2517 2 AR A7
of share options 21,011 15,184
Interest paid BEARFIE (215,343) (148,818
Issue of senior notes BITRERE 2,300,975 2,666,000
New borrowings raised EEE 276,437 479,598
Repayments of borrowings EREE (1,314,076) (1,198,398)
Net cash paid arising from changes in ME R Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf% 4
the ownership interests in subsidiaries EfR e F5E (3,142) (3,556)
Capital injection by SR
non-controlling interests 73,304 51,348
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests SR E T IR ER (129,639) (192,864)
Purchase of own shares for B SRR S B A AR (D
share award scheme (85,897) (54,810)
Dividends paid BERRE (38,014) (32,275)
Net cash generated from financing activities ER& EENELE Z RS F58 885,616 1,581,409
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—M&E+_A=+—HIEFE

(continued) (#&)

2014 2013
—E-NmF —T—=4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FTHET FET
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBEFEEBILINFE (685,994) 911,744
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BHREERESEEE 3,377,551 2,416,911
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes b S Ep s 2 - 48,896
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December W+=—A=+—HREKES

F{EIEA 26 2,691,557 3,377,551

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial BEM 2 B 5T BALR & BTSSR R 2 4R ER5 ©

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office of the Company is at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business of the Company is at Suite
2805, 28th Floor, Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaging in investment in energy related
business in various regions in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
and West Central Alberta, Canada, including but not limited to 1) piped
city gas business, pipeline design and construction; 2) transportation,
distribution and sales of compressed natural gas (“CNG") and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG”); and 3) development, production and sale of oil
and gas and other upstream energy resources. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to the “Group”.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by revaluation of certain available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32) for this financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 5.

e IR R M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Effect of adopting amendments to standards and new
interpretation

The following amendments to standards and new interpretation
are mandatory for the financial year beginning 1 January 2014:

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKAS 36 (Amendment) Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Transition guidance

11 and 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Investment entities
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendment

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

HKAS 39 Amendment

The adoption of the amendments to existing standards and
new interpretation did not have any material impact on the
preparation of the Group'’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and improvements to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

The following new standards, amendments and improvements to
existing standards have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2014 and have not been early

adopted:
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS
16 and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS
16 and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS
10, 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 27

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9
Annual Improvements
Project

Annual Improvements
Project

Annual Improvements
Project

Defined Benefit Plans —
Employee Contributions'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception?

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers®

Financial Instruments*

Annual Improvements to
2010-2012 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to
2011-2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to
2012-2014 Cycle?

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

(9]

New standards, amendments and improvements to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

The Group is assessing the impact of these new standards,
amendments and improvements to existing standards and will
apply them once they are effective.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation as from the Group’s first financial year commencing
on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of
that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the period
of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the impact
is unlikely to be significant and only the presentation and the
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements
will be affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years, unless otherwise stated.

(@) Subsidiaries
(i) Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

(1) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTHHEMEE)

(Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) HBAT (&)

(i)  Consolidation (Continued) (i) #ZEERE (&

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

(1)

(2)

(3)

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(ii) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

(b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tre SRR M

(continued) (4&)

3 FESHBEHME(E)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statements, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income s

(b)

B NT (H)

£ B R AG BE 2 2 R U 12 05 B SRS 1B
ZIBEREA WS RTHER - HEMS
WEEEMEEBRAZSINEME

recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding HRAFER  WHIZEREBEED
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When HERE - ZEBEGEEAFERE

the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method in the consolidated profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
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of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies BENR ST BHRERFTELE - A

of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9]

Joint arrangement

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Group
has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in
the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Impairment testing of investment in associate or joint
venture

Impairment testing of the investment in associate or joint venture
is required upon receiving dividends from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

e MR RAR MR

(continued) (#)

3 FEETBREE A

(d)

(e)

(f)

REBERRAREE
Eﬁ

EEZRERER

R ERBHAEEEZRE MW
RZBEBHZBE QR é%ﬁ%
RESEIRZ BHAz2EBAL
ﬁﬁ%&é%%l%ﬁﬁ%Z%ﬁﬁ
BHEREARFEE (BREAE)Z
HEMBRRAZEEE  AIARK
BREREZBREBBRETRERELZ
RERIH -

ok

B

B
T

DEHHED A BREHTFEEL
REEEZ NI REAEARE
B AR DEERMFA GEE
PREMEBLERRIESE - W
REEBERROATES °

&K
pus

Fl} o A >\+ Dﬂk

&)
7=
)
f

SRS
(i) DERZHEE

BRI EER
ERKEMAELER
¥ ([eE® )t
MBBKRIARRZ T8
SR (ER) 2

m
-

b

EREDIET R
NUD%EWW

X! f
moe

%ﬁ

=
5

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “:




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated profit or loss within ‘finance income or
expenses’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated profit or loss within ‘other
gains/(losses)’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESHBEMEE)

(Continued)
(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (f) SERE(E)
(iii) Group companies (iii) FE LA

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

- income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

When a foreign operation is sold, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation are reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the year-
end closing rate. Currency translation difference arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTHHEMEE)

(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) W% BERRE

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly oil and gas
properties, buildings, plant and machinery, pipelines, motor
vehicles and others. Accounting policies for oil and gas properties
are set out in Note 3(h). All other property, plant and equipment
is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the consolidated profit or loss during the financial year in which
they are incurred. Except for oil and gas properties, depreciation
on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
Buildings 12.5 to 25 years or remaining lease
period of the land where applicable
3 to 20 years
20 years
3 to 20 years

Plant and machinery
Pipelines
Others

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position
date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 3(k)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents pipelines under construction
and is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Costs comprise direct and indirect
incremental costs of acquisition or construction. Completed items
are transferred from construction in progress to proper categories
of property, plant and equipment when they are ready for their
intended use.

Oil and gas properties

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion
of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and the
drilling of commercially proven development wells, is capitalised
within construction in progress under property, plant and
equipment. When development is completed on a specific field, it
is transferred to oil and gas properties under property, plant and
equipment. No depreciation and depletion is charged during the
development phase.

Qil and gas properties are aggregated exploration and evaluation
assets and development expenditures associated with the
production of proved reserves.

Oil and gas properties are depreciated and depleted using the
unit-of-production method. Unit-of-production rates are based
on total proved reserves, which are oil, gas and other mineral
reserves estimated to be recovered using current operating
methods and taking into account estimated future development
costs necessary to bring those reserves into production. Future
development costs are estimated taking into account the level of
development required to produce the reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Oil and gas properties (Continued)

(i)

Oil and gas volumes are considered to be part of production once
they have been measured through meters at custody transfer or
sales transaction points at the outlet valve on the field storage
tank.

Proven oil and gas properties are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Oil and gas exploration and evaluation expenditures are
accounted for using the successful efforts method of accounting.
Costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis. Geological,
geophysical costs and pre-licence costs are expensed as incurred.
Costs directly associated with an exploration well, and exploration
and property leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised within
exploration and evaluation assets until the determination of
reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that commercial discovery
has not been achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration and evaluation
assets are tested for impairment and transferred to construction
in progress under property, plant and equipment. No depreciation
and depletion is charged during the exploration and evaluation
phase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment
when reclassified to construction in progress, or whenever
facts and circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the exploration and
evaluation assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the exploration
and evaluation assets’ fair value less costs of disposal and their
value in use.

Intangible assets
(i)  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
and more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less cost of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets comprise mainly exclusive rights, club
membership and computer operating system.

Exclusive rights are shown at historical cost. Exclusive
rights have definite useful lives and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of exclusive
rights over their estimated useful lives ranging from 30 to 48
years for natural gas supply services.

Investment in club membership is shown at historical cost.
Investment in club membership has indefinite useful life and
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and is not amortised.

Computer operating system is shown at historical cost.
Computer operating system has definite useful lives and is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of computer operating system over its estimated useful
lives of 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(k)

(U]

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Land use rights

Land use rights are lump sum upfront payments to acquire long-
term interest in lessee-occupied properties. Land use rights
relating to buildings of the Group under operating lease and
finance lease arrangements are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on the straight-line basis to
consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available for sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.

(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise deposits, trade and other receivables, time
deposits with maturity over three months and cash and
cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification (Continued)
(3) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date-the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value, except for those
investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market, and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category
are presented in the consolidated profit or loss within
"Other gains/(losses)” in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss
as part of “other income” when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated profit or loss. As
“gains or losses from investment securities”

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss as part of “other income”. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss as part of “other income” when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tre SRR M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESHBEMEE)

(Continued)
(n) Impairment of financial assets (n) HMBEEERE
(i)  Assets carried at amortised cost (i) KBRS R 2 B &K

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

e  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

. A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

e The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

o [t becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

e The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTHHEMEE)

(Continued)
B EERE (&)

(n) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(n)

(i) HUBEEFIRZHBEER (&)

(i)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

o Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio;

(2) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(n) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss —
is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated income statement.
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(continued) (4&)

3 FESHBEHME(E)

(n) MBEERE(H)

()

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less all costs to completion and all direct costs
to be incurred in selling and distribution.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sales and
distribution of oil and natural gas and other related products or
gas pipeline construction and connection services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. The Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that trade and other receivables are impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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(r)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS SRaR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and the costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sales and distribution of natural gas

Sales and distribution of natural gas are recognised when
the gas is used by the customers. Payments received in
advance on pre-paid I/C cards that are related to sales of
natural gas not yet delivered are deferred in the consolidated
statements of financial position. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to the customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Gas pipeline construction and connection fee income

Gas pipeline construction and connection fee income is
recognised using the percentage of completion method, but
when the period of construction works is short, the revenue
is recognised when the relevant construction works are
completed and connection services are rendered.

Sales and distribution of crude oil

The sales of crude oil is recorded when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the product is transferred to
the buyer which is usually when legal title passes to the
external party and this is generally at the time product enters
the pipeline.

Sales of equipment

Sales of equipment are recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the equipment
sold.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
tenant lease.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
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(v) WARER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(w) Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefit costs

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post retirement benefits of its
employees. The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the provincial governments.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those qualifying employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
and who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, contributions to the
scheme by the Group and the employees are calculated as
a percentage of employee’s relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (January-May
2014)/HK$30,000 (June-December 2014). The retirement
benefit scheme costs charged to consolidated profit or
loss represent contributions payable by the Group in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
payment are recognised when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service payment as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the statement of financial
position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of share options or restricted
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options or restricted shares granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time).
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(w) EEEF (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTHHEMEE)

(Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued) (w) EERF (&)

(iii) Share-based payments (Continued) (iii) KRG REEZ (57 (E)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or restricted shares that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options or restricted shares that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Share option scheme

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESHBEMEE)

(Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued) (w) EERF (&)

(iii) Share-based payments (Continued) (iii) UBRGBEBZ 7 (E)

(iv)

Share award scheme

When restricted shares are granted, the fair value of
restricted shares are recongised as expense with a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the vesting period.

Where the Group purchases the Company’s shares from
the market, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as “shares held
for award scheme” and deducted from total equity in the
parent equity accounts.

The social security contributions payable in connection
with the grant of the share options and restricted shares
is considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the
charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

Incentive compensation plans

The Group operates a cash settled compensation plans for
officer, employee and eligible contractor. The fair values of
the amounts payable to eligible participants under these
plans are recognised as an expense with a corresponding
increase in liabilities over the period that the compensation
pertains to. The recorded liability is re-measured at the end
of each reporting period until settlement with the resultant
change to the fair value of the liability recognised in earnings
in the period. When the plans are settled, the cash paid
reduces outstanding liability.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s
employees and contractor. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

I 43 58 R =t &I

i 32 PR B M A AD -+ PR 1 A £
MATEERR/AS  YRE
BHIA LR IFHARERAR -

WEBETHABARRBRD -
ENKE(RREREAEXENE
AR A) 1% [ B EERIET Bl A 1
tn | 23 XN R R#ERRK
Frfttess @A -

L8 BRI R SO % PR 6 1 P £
A B B REH IR B
MAF W —EEKED > MEE
RERRAREEENKS -

(iv) ZR#EE 2

SERSEBE  EERAER
ABERAAEXNHEES -
BREBEZSHEENAERSEE
FRM A ERR /A - M
mEMBEAEN R ERREEM -
PrEx SR ERRE R RENT
B HERHNERERER/RN
BNCHABATERE E6&E
it ElF - BNBRSRDRER
BfE -

SEEKE GO EARESMA
NAZHIBBEMER %12
AERTEEHES MABREAE
HERM - EEREHETHEE
FEBEELETE T MHERE
fha

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “ :




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(x)

(y)

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Taxation

Taxation for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The taxation charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial
position date in the countries where the Group, associate
and joint venture operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESHBEMEE)

(Continued)

(y) Taxation (Continued) (y) FiE (&)

Deferred income taxation is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liability is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, joint venture and associate,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(y)

(2)

(aa)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payment made under operating leases, net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to consolidated
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.
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(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management 4 BiERBEL
4.1 Financial instruments by categories 4.1 RERE S Z2EFMIE
Group £ME
Available- Financial Financial
for-sale assets at fair liabilities at
financial value through Loans and amortised
assets  profit or loss receivables cost
BOTE REBHERA
AHHE RIEFE AR BRK FTEZ
BMBEE ZHBEE FEWRE BHAE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fisE FAT FAT FAET FAET
As at 31 December 2014 RZZT—MF
+-A=+—
Available-for-sale financial assets At SR é@ 22 585,211 - - -
Deposits, trade and Be B REM
other receivables FEBGRIE 24 - - 1,495,033 -
Financial assets at fair value BATELER AR
through profit or loss LB EE 25 - 53,859 - -
Time deposits, bank balances EHIER - RITHER
and cash &k 26 - - 3,665,296 -
Trade and other payables B REMBENTIE 27 - - - 1,680,480
Borrowings BE 29 - - - 808,379
Senior notes BEZRE 30 - - - 4,978,675

585,211 53,859 5,160,329 7,467,534

As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-RA=+—8

Available-for-sale financial assets A ERKEE 22 835,011 = = =
Deposits, trade and other Be  BHKREM

receivables JEWRIE 24 = = 910,658 =
Financial assets at fair value BRAFELERAR

through profit or loss ZHBEE 25 - 145,812 = =
Time deposits, bank balances THIER  RIT4E

and cash KRB 26 - - 4,172,978 -
Trade and other payables 25 REMENTIE 27 = = = 859,804
Borrowings e 29 = = = 1,662,500
Senior notes BERR 30 = = = 2,672,082

835,011 145,812 5,083,636 5,194,386
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e B RS SRaR M

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 HREBER (&

4.1 BERHEDZERMTA(HF

4.1 Financial instruments by categories (Continued)

Company AT
Financial Financial
assets at fair liabilities at
value through Loans and amortised
profit or loss receivables cost
BEATE REBHR A
FS=ErPN: BXK fTEZ
ZHBREE WIS g =i
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FAT FAT FAET
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE—MF
+-A=+—H
Deposits, trade and Ze BHREM
other receivables W RIE 24 - 25,298 =
Time deposits, bank balances TEHTF S~ RITHEH
and cash kFe 26 - 373,801 -
Other payables H e 308 27 - - 46,143
Senior notes BARE 30 - - 4,978,675
- 399,099 5,024,818
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-A=+—H
Deposits, trade and Ze  BHRHEM
other receivables FEURIE 24 = 23,980 =
Financial assets at fair value BAFELERAR
through profit or loss I EE 25 33,138 = =
Time deposits, bank balances TEHIER - RITAER
and cash ke 26 - 923,410 -
Other payables H e 308 27 = = 28,262
Borrowings BE 29 = = 700,000
Senior notes BEER 30 = = 2,672,082
33,138 947,390 3,400,344
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising in the normal course of
its business and financial instruments. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@) Market risk

0]

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
United States dollar (“US$”), Canadian dollar (“CAD")
and Renminbi (“RMB”). Currency risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. This currency exposure is managed
primarily through sourcing supplies denominated in the
same currency.

Management has set up a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against functional currency. It mainly includes
managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group
also manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group's net foreign exchange
exposures. The Group has not used any forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge its exposure.
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Prices for oil and natural gas in Canada are determined
in global markets and generally denominated in US$.
Qil prices obtained by the Group are influenced by
both United States and Canadian demand and the
corresponding North American supply. The exchange
rate effect cannot be quantified but generally an
increase in the value of CAD as compared to US$
will reduce the prices received by the Group for its
petroleum and natural gas sales.

As US$ is pegged with HK$ under the Linked Exchange
Rate System, the Group has minimal exposure to
currency risk arising from US$. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is performed. As at 31 December
2014, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against HK$, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$61,212,000 (2013: HK$43,222,000) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents.
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(continued) (4&)

4  Financial risk management (Continued) 4 HIBREMBERE(E
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.2 BiEEBRER (A&

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THERE ()

(ii) Price risk (i) EE@EE

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Other than unlisted debt and
equity securities held for strategic purposes, all of
these investments are listed. Most of the Group's
listed investments are listed on the stock exchange of
Hong Kong and other countries. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of the individual securities compared
to that of the index and other industry indicators, as
well as the Group’s liquidity needs. Listed investments
held in the available-for-sale portfolio have been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations. The portfolio is diversified in terms of
industry distribution, in accordance with the limits set
by the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, debt and equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to HK$53,859,000 (2013:
HK$145,812,000). Price risk arises on account of debt
and equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is not material to the
Group as a whole.

Commodity price risk is the risk that fair value or
future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes
in commodity prices. Commodity prices for oil and
natural gas in Canada are impacted by the relationship
between CAD and US$ as well as world economic
events that dictate the levels of supply and demand.
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk (Continued)

It is the Group’s policy to economically hedge certain
oil and natural gas sales through the use of various
financial derivative forward sales contracts when
situation arisen. The Group does not enter into
commodity contracts other than to meet expected
sales requirements. The Group does not apply hedge
accounting for these contracts. All derivative contracts
have settled during the year and the Group had
not entered into any derivative contracts as at 31
December 2014.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets,
except for short-term bank deposits, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate significant impact
on interest-bearing assets resulted from changes
in interest rates because the interest rates of bank
deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The Group'’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings
and senior notes. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

Details of the Group’s borrowings and senior notes are
set out in Note 29 and 30 respectively.
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e SRR M

(continued) (4&)

4  Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIBREREE (&)
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.2 HHEREER (A
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THERE ()
(iii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (iii) FI=Z=E b (F)

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk as the interest
rate risk exposure is not significant. In order to manage
the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group will repay
the corresponding borrowings when it has surplus
funds.

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates on floating rate borrowings, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s profit after taxation by approximately
HK$8,374,000 (2013: HK$9,332,000). The above
sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
statement of financial position date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the next annual statement of
financial position date. The analysis was performed on
the same basis for 2013.
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(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 EBIERER(E)

4.2 BEBEEE (&)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (b) EEREE

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, the debt instruments under available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these financial instruments. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all of the Group's
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions
located in the PRC, Canada and Hong Kong, which the
management believes are of high credit quality without
significant credit risk. The Group’s bank deposits as at 31
December 2014 and 2013 were as follows:
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2014 2013

—E—NF —T—=%

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHET

State-owned banks HERIT 1,532,667 1,918,820
Listed banks EmRTT 1,979,036 2,115,172
Other banks HAhRTT 150,830 137,193
3,662,533 4,171,185

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with
banks and excludes cash on hand of HK$2,763,000
and HK$1,793,000, as at 31 December 2014 and 2013
respectively. Credit risk also arises from outstanding trade
and other receivables from customers and a number of
counter parties.
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e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

4  Financial risk management (Continued) 4 HIBREMBERE(E
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 42 BEEBEE (&
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEERE (&)

The management considers the credit risk on loan to third
parties after considering the financial conditions of the
counter parties. Management has performed assessment
over the recoverability of the balances and management
does not expect any losses from non-performance by these
counter parties.

The Group generally requests advances from customers.
In circumstances of credit sales, to manage the credit risk
in respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the Group performs
credit evaluations of its customers, and generally does not
require collateral from the customers on the outstanding
balances. Based on the expected recoverability and timing
for collection of the outstanding balances, the Group
maintains a provision for impairment of receivables and
actual losses incurred have been within management’s
expectation.

Debt instruments held by the Group are normally only in
liquid securities quoted on a recognised stock exchange,
except where entered into for long-term strategic purposes.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.
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(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BREREIR (&)

4.2 BEBEEE (&)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk () mEBELERE

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’'s Board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the statement of financial position date of the
Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the statement of financial
position date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay:
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(continued) (4&)

Financial risk management (Continued)

(c)

4 HBBREREE(E)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 42 BEERREE (&
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HEEZEE(E)
Total Less than
Total  contractual 1 year Between Between
carrying undiscounted oron 1to2 2to5
amount cash flow demand years years
BRRITHR 1ER
REAE REREBLT RERIA 1228 2Z5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR BT THT FET
Group &8
As at 31 December 2014 RZZT—MmF
+=-A=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMIER 1,680,480 1,680,480 1,680,480 = =
Borrowings fBE 808,379 830,422 830,422 - -
Senior notes BERE 4,978,675 6,357,625 155,813 261,380 5,940,432
7,467,534 8,868,527 2,666,715 261,380 5,940,432
As at 31 December 2013 RZT—=F
+-A=+-H
Trade and other payables EH5REMEMERHR 859,804 859,804 859,804 = =
Borrowings BE 1,662,500 1,763,142 761,629 293,959 707,554
Senior notes BERE 2,672,082 3,329,593 142,406 142,406 3,044,781
5,194,386 5,952,539 1,763,839 436,365 3,752,335
Company A7
As at 31 December 2014 RZZT—MF
+-A=+—H
Other payables H At A BR SR 46,143 46,143 46,143 = =
Senior notes BERE 4,978,675 6,357,625 155,813 261,380 5,940,432
5,024,818 6,403,768 201,956 261,380 5,940,432
As at 31 December 2013 RZT—=F
+-A=+-H
Other payables H At A BR SR 28,262 28,262 28,262 = =
Borrowings fBE 700,000 759,354 25,900 25,900 707,554
Senior notes BERE 2,672,082 3,329,593 142,406 142,406 3,044,781
3,400,344 4,117,209 196,568 168,306 3,752,335

FHRREERRAR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIRREMER (&

4.3 Capital risk management 43 EXREBER

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected
profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditure and projected strategic investment opportunities. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, repurchase
the Company’s shares, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of available cash and
cash equivalents and current ratio as shown in and derived from
the consolidated statement of financial position. The table below
analyses the Group's capital structure:

SECEAEEIRERARESRE
BSEEREREZEN  URERK
REREFRBE RSP E TR
MaE o URFREEARARBARDE
DN

SHEERE RN REEERRRE
VREBEBZARESELRER
M~ BRI RBHANE N RS
BRERE  FAHMERHAX MIEHR
BEREREMEREICEARERK
RO - BRFAFHBEARRERE &
BRERBEXNTRRZBESHE
BEARKRD  ARREBREAS - &
TR IHEBEENR D ER

SERBHEAMBIRRIRRFTE
sz ARERIREFEER KR
B RERER TRAKEERKE
Bz

2014 2013
—E-NmF —T—=4F
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRLEFMEEE
(HK$'000) (F#7T) 2,691,557 3,377,551
Current ratio (Current assets MBI (R B E ERR
divided by current liabilities) LORBI & &) 1.41 2.02

The Group's strategy is to maintain the current ratio above 1.00
and sufficient cash and cash equivalents to support the operations
and development of its business in the long term.

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 HIBREMBERE(E
4.4 Fair value estimation 4.4 NFEMGE
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (i) URFEIzL@MTA

The following table presents the carrying value of the TREJIRIBRAXBPER

financial instruments measured at fair value at the statement BB HREENETR /T

of financial position date across the three levels of the fair B BEIMAEZATFE={

value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: BRH - AAFEIERzEHMT

Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instruments BZRHEE mMEEMIAZR

categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input FEAHZATFEAEBERNZ

that is significant to that fair value measurement. =RERMABIEMEE DL -

The levels are defined as follows: FRAEZ BRI ¢

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using o F—EXE&EEENRX): UA
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Al @ T EEBTISTR
identical financial instruments. BRCREAR)FERT

=8

e Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in o FoRENR:EMUemTA
active market for similar financial instruments, or using EETIZIE - skABER
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are fiir (B Fr A B K8 A BUE
directly or indirectly based on observable data. ThE RS AT B R EH R

RAE)FAERFE-

e level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using e FZER(ZEEKX): B
valuation techniques in which any significant input is HERN (KR EXE AR
not based on observable market data. B IR BRMISEIEA

) EHE AT -

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “ :
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e MR A

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

4 HIEREE(

=]

4.4

DTS (A

V1

(i) HURFEIRZZHTA (E)

Group -3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—BR FZBR E=BR “@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBrx FAET TEx BT
As at 31 December 2014 RZE—MFE+=A=1—H
Available-for-sale financial assets:  AIftHHEREEE :
— Listed equity investments — ERARE 2 - - 2
— Listed debt instruments —EmEBIA 129,759 - - 129,759
— Unlisted debt instruments —FLMEBIA - 450 - 450
Financial assets at fair value BATELEE AR IBEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — ETRARE 4,657 - = 4,657
— Listed debt instruments —FmEBTIA 21,419 - - 21,419
— Unlisted debt instruments —JFELmEBIA - 27,783 - 27,783
155,837 28,233 - 184,070
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A=1+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets: AJftH &K EE -
— Listed equity investments — EmRARE 2 - - 2
— Listed debt instruments - FmEKITA 644,559 - = 644,559
— Unlisted debt instruments —JFLImEKIA - 450 = 450
Financial assets at fair value BATESEE AR MBEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — FTRARE 86,457 = = 86,457
— Listed debt instruments —EmEBIA 31,888 - - 31,888
— Unlisted debt instruments —JFLMmEBIA - 27,467 - 27,467
762,906 27,917 - 790,823

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

e MR MR

(continued) (#)

4 BHERER (A

4.4

DEME ()

(i) KR FESEKzEMTA (&)

Company NG|
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-BIR EZBIR FZBR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FET THT FER
As at 31 December 2014 RZE—ME+=A=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BATESES AR HBEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — ERARE - - - -
As at 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=F+=-A=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BAT 2 EBE AR BEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — L RARE 33,138 = = 33,138
33,138 = = 33,138

During the year, there were no transfers between
instruments in level 1 and level 2.

MREAFE  E—EBERARE_ER
Z Bz T AR EmeEs -

FARREEER AR 2014FF3f z::
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e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1
comprise primarily Hong Kong and Dow Jones equity
and debt investments classified as trading securities or
available-for-sale.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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e SRR M

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 HIBREMBERE(E

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.4 AFEME(H
(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other (i) UFRAFEIEzE2MTAZL

than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments, including non-current assets carried at
cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the statement of financial
position date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price (i.e. level
1-highest level). The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques.

The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each statement of financial position date. Quoted market
prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term borrowings. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for
the remaining financial instruments.

The carrying values less allowance for impairment of
current receivables and of current payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. Estimated discounted
cash flows at the current market interest rate are used to
determine fair value for these financial instruments (i.e. level
3-lowest level).

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “:

Vi
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.5 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
The following financial assets are subject to offsetting,

enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements
of the Company.

4 HBERERE(E)

4.5

BHENBEERMBEAR

BRI AREMITEFEGEER
BFEUmEMPEEENT ¢

Gross Gross amounts
amounts of of recognised  Net amounts of
recognised financial liabilities  financial assets
financial set off in the presented in the
assets balance sheet balance sheet
REEBER REEGER
BB i% TR L0l
BESE B A EERE EERE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
As at 31 December 2014 —mE+=—A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGTE S 6,089,849 (163,335) 5,926,514
Gross Gross amounts
amounts of of recognised Net amounts of
recognised  financial liabilities financial assets
financial set off in the presented in the
assets balance sheet balance sheet
REE&RERX REEBRER
R HEHPTAER Edllsolpv
BERT e EeE BEFH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FAT
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries i G =YNGIE S 4,168,825 (82,996) 4,085,829

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar arrangements above, each
agreement between the Company and the counterparty allows
for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and liabilities
when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the absence of such
an election, financial assets and liabilities will be settled on a gross
basis, however, each party to the master netting agreement or
similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts
on a net basis in the event of default of the other party.

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014

‘}ZiﬁMTﬁ%

RERE

PR A BT R FRAEE 2B
ZRBRNMBEERAEM

NEERZ ST ;JE!’JQIET;?%

E%ﬁ BERFERE
%*ﬁ@ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁé&ﬁt\
EFHBEENBERLT
ﬁ‘i@?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁg

‘EHE =

HEEE

2EROF

: SR Dt
AABERONBRTERERZ
FREEGEMBERESE

EEE ’ 7:\TntF
MBEERE

AT EF
SH) X AT AV 5

—'—:Cl?—v—




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
The assumptions, estimates and judgements are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. While the management reviews their judgements,
estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom
equal to the estimates.

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The matters described below are considered to be the most critical
in understanding the estimates and judgements that are involved in
preparing the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(a) Estimation of impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. Property, plant and equipment and goodwill
are also reviewed for possible impairments whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to whether and how
much an asset is impaired involves management estimates and
judgements such as future prices of natural gas. However, the
impairment reviews and calculations are based on assumptions
that are consistent with the Group’s business plans. Favourable
changes to some assumptions may allow the Group to avoid the
need to impair any assets in these years, whereas unfavourable
changes may cause the assets to become impaired.

5

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)
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e MR A

(continued) (#&)

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 5 BAEFHHFTIRHE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Estimation of useful lives and residual values of property, (b) ME BMERREZEAEHREEH
plant and equipment EEMET
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful SEEEREEEEEYE  BEER
lives and residual values for the Group’s property, plant and Bzt ERFHEFSREE-
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience UL st DERE RO E RN
of the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant ¥ BEARGBZERAFERAFEHK
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change FItpBEMNELLERMEL o G
significantly as a result of technological advancement and Al A RARAT MR 2P R BIFTm
innovations in the natural gas industry. Management will adjust AIEEE - MFREBEELRHETE
the depreciation charge where residual values vary with previously ZR BEEESARITEER 0 il
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete SEEMUR BT F B S EES e
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual RIIERBEEEE - ERFIREE
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic BT FISREETR o 5 IEIEE—IAb
review could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual ERAEFHLFGEEEEY
values and therefore depreciation in the future periods. IR AR REAR IR E -

(c) Estimate of petroleum reserve (c) AARFEEZMHE
Estimates of petroleum reserves are key elements in the Group’s BRFEZHITHEBR ZRERKRA
investment decision-making process. They are also an important REBREE  TEABEBARCZEEZR
element in testing for impairment. Changes in total proved Z - RARRBRECELELEZER
petroleum reserves will affect unit-of-production depreciation SEGEMBRETREABRRAAR
and depletion recorded in the Group’s consolidated financial EEEBRBYE - BB RRER
statements for property, plant and equipment related to oil ABRZEBENESNERER - FHE
and gas production activities. A reduction in proved developed RERE 2RO HEMTE RIERES
reserves will increase depreciation and depletion charges. Proved o RAREAT A BRETERED
reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or M Eskm NEET - Bl - REFEE
downward, based on new information, such as from development FREEFHIRELEREZ 2 E
drilling and production activities or from changes in economic ZEER  BREMER - GRGEXR
factors, including product prices, contract terms or development BB -
plans.
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5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets and oil
and gas properties under property, plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of exploration and evaluation assets and
oil and gas properties under property, plant and equipment are
assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest
that the carrying amounts of them may exceed their recoverable
amounts. The Group’s determination as to whether they are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of
the assets. The Group relied on experts to assess the geological
prospects for the discovery of oil in the oil field and estimated
the value of oil to be produced in the future at a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. For drilling
costs and other exploration and evaluation assets, the Group
determined whether the related well costs are expensed if it is
determined that such economic viability is not attained after
performing further feasibility studies. Judgement is required by
the directors to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash
flow projections and changes to key assumptions can significantly
affect these cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.

Estimate of natural gas consumption

Revenue for natural gas supply may include an estimation of
the natural gas supplied to the customers of which actual meter
reading is not available. The estimation is done mainly based on
the past consumption records and recent consumption pattern
of individual customers. As of the statement of financial position
date, the overall billed natural gas sales are in line with the natural
gas supplied to the customers.

e R AR MY

(continued) (#)

5 BAREFHEETRHE (&)

(d)

(e)

HRRAGEERRYE  BERR
BRZAMRRARNEZRE

EFBEABNRADRRAEEEN
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e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

()

(9)

Estimation of fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

Where the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation
techniques including the market approach based on a price/
book multiple derived from comparable companies. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of the available-for-sale
financial assets.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and
calculations during the ordinary course of business for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
When the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
taxation charges in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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e SRR M

(continued) (#)

Revenue and segment information 6 EXEBERDHER

The Group’s principal activities are the sales and distribution of SEETEREHERDHARAAR - Bl &k
natural gas, crude oil and other related products and provision of EMHABEERERNTRERRREERE
construction and connection services of gas pipelines in the PRC, and FiERRE  UARENEAFRERSER
the exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas in Canada. AN KAR - FRNEEREBIEATSIE :

Revenue for the year comprises the following:

2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sales and distribution of natural gas SHE MR KA R MEMABRAER
and other related products 6,296,143 5,398,517
Gas pipeline connection and MRS B R REERBUA
construction services income 1,077,009 1,041,308
Revenue from exploitation and REFRREERBR
production of crude oil RARZEHERE
and natural gas 324,659 -
7,697,811 6,439,825

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “:
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e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 EEERDITER (EF)

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance focuses more specifically on sales of natural
gas, gas pipeline construction and connection; and exploitation and
production of crude oil and natural gas.

The Group has presented the following three reportable segments for
the year ended 31 December 2014:

—  sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products
- gas pipeline construction and connection
—  exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable segments.

The executive directors assess the performance of the business
segments based on profit before taxation without allocation of other
gains/(losses), interest income, finance costs, share of profit/(loss) of
a joint venture, share of loss of an associate and other unallocated
corporate expenses, which is consistent with these in the financial
statements. Meanwhile, the Group does not allocate assets or liabilities
to its segments, as the executive directors do not use this information
to allocate resources to or evaluate the performance of operating
segment. Therefore, the Group does not report a measure of segment
assets and segment liabilities for each reportable segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the executive directors for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013 is set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014:

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

EXFENDEESR (&)

RE=T—WE+=A=T—ALFE

Sales and
distribution
of natural Gas pipeline  Exploitation and
gas and construction production of
other related and crude oil and
products connection natural gas Group
HER#X B R
AARRH A MRREE EERH
HEER BERER RAAR &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Segment revenue and results PBRAREE
Sales to external customers HINBEPHER 6,296,143 1,077,009 324,659 7,697,811
Segment results NEERE 378,941 482,491 60,871 922,303
Interest income FISHA 125,371
Other gains, net Hitlzs - 55 46,385
Finance costs BB (135,860)
Share of profit of a joint venture [EfE—fE & ERH 9,228
Share of loss of an associate E(E—falEE A RIEE (1,512)
Unallocated corporate expenses APEEERR (111,752)
Profit before taxation BBt An&E T 854,163
Taxation ] (217,565)
Profit for the year FREM 636,598
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 EXBRIMBER(EF)
For the year ended 31 December 2013: HE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HIFE:
Sales and
distribution
of natural Gas pipeline  Exploitation and
gas and construction production of
other related and crude oil and
products connection natural gas Group
SHE KX Rk
RARKEA MREE EERH
HRER BERER RRAR 3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAET TBT FHBT
Segment revenue and results ITHBRAREE
Sales to external customers INBEPIEEE 5,398,517 1,041,308 = 6,439,825
Segment results NEEE 779,373 451,580 = 1,230,953
Interest income FlSHA 99,603
Other losses, net Hings - 58 (18,132)
Finance costs BB (114,674)
Share of loss of a joint venture FEE—MAE ¥R (3,212)
Share of loss of an associate (b —FRIEs = A Bl &R (861)
Unallocated corporate expenses ADEEEHRS (15,137)
Profit before taxation BRETATR A 1,178,540
Taxation A (240,945)
Profit for the year F R 937,595

No external customers of the Group contributed over 10.0% of the
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Analysis of the Group's assets by geographical market for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

(continued) (#)

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “ :

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 EXEERDIER(E)
Assets BE
2014 2013
L —F-=F
Additions to Additions to
Total non-current Total non-current
assets assets assets assets
wE NE
mEE FRBEE BEE ERBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART THET TAT TAL
Hong Kong BE 2,094,294 1,899 2,130,751 789
Mainland China B A3t 10,027,192 1,525,298 8,997,691 1,564,004
Canada nex 2,646,141 323,840 - -
Total At 14,767,627 1,851,037 11,128,442 1,564,793
Unallocated AAHE
Interest in an associate R — B A R 4,650 6,162
Interest in a joint venture R—EAECERER 50,459 41,231
Deferred tax assets EIERTEEE 5,643 =
Available-for-sale financial assets A HERSEE 585,211 835,011
Financial assets at fair value through ~ FRAFELIEZ AR
profit or loss LITEEE 53,859 145,812
Total assets BEE 15,467,449 12,156,658
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e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

7 Otherincome 7 HUgA
2014 2013
—E—IF —T—=fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&x FET
Government subsidies BT L 27,724 14,922
Service income BRASUTA 8,296 7,618
Rental income LW A 5,306 7,242
Dividend income from listed securities 8% 2 BB U A 573 4,720
Others Hib 5,758 3,073
47,657 37,575
8 Other gains/(losses), net 8 Hthzm, (E518) » F5E
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fair value losses on financial assets EATELESE RN BEERN
at fair value through profit or loss NEEEE (237) (24,931)
Losses/(gains) on disposals of financial — H&Z A ELEZ ARL
assets at fair value through s EEEE, (W)
profit or loss (8,021) 6,799
Gain on disposals of HERHHEEERR
available-for-sale assets 17,146 -
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 35) B (1sE35) 37,497 =
Others Hih 4,045 =
50,430 (18,132)
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e SRR M

(continued) (4&)

Operating profit 9 LR
Operating profit has been arrived after charging/(crediting) the KERFB R (FFA) T3I&IE

following items:

2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Staff costs (excluding directors’ ETRA(TEREESME (HE11)) -
remuneration (Note 11)):
Salaries and wages HehkIE 282,769 207,567
Equity-settled share-based payments — LAMEZS45E LA D A ERE 2 3K 59 2,717
Retirement benefits scheme RINEFETEIHER
contributions 44,529 37,380
327,357 247,664
Minimum lease payments under HE it MEF 7 SR ETHE K
operating leases for leasehold
land and buildings 14,041 14,929
Cost of inventories recognised 17 B AN ) 2 R
as expense 5,674,154 4,407,747
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN S
— Audit services —BZRE 2,200 1,650
— Non-audit services — IEE R 2,751 1,030
Depreciation and depletion of M - BB KR EITE RERE (MiE16)
property, plant and equipment
(Note 16) 363,732 187,032
Amortisation of land b PR A S (PEE18)
use rights (Note 18) 5,651 3,070
Amortisation of intangible EREERE (MFE19)
assets (Note 19) 1,442 1,398
Losses/(gain) on disposals of HEWE  BMERREBZEER (W)
property, plant and equipment 547 (1,116)
Net exchange losses/(gains) P& e, (Ukes) 558 2,052 (20,132)
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

10 Interest income and finance costs

10 MEBEWARSBEEN

2014 2013
—E-WmEF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT
Interest income from: FEWARE :
Bank deposits HRITIFH 65,477 62,121
Loans to third parties (Note 24(c)) BERTE=7 (KizE24(c) 59,894 37,482
125,371 99,603
Finance costs: W%
Interest on: T8 -
Bank borrowings, wholly BERAFARHEBZRITEE
repayable within five years (45,356) (47,775)
Other borrowings, wholly BRAFNEBEEZHMEE
repayable within five years (23,855) (26,345)
Senior notes, wholly repayable ARRAFRNEHEEZEBLEER
within five years (169,024) (102,880)
Less: Amounts capitalised W BRNMEERE 102,375 62,326
(135,860) (114,674)
Finance costs, net PEER  F58 (10,489) (15,071)

Amounts capitalised are borrowing costs that are attributable to the
construction of qualifying assets. The average interest rate used to
capitalise such borrowing costs was 6.3% (2013: 5.2%) per annum for

the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments

Details of remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

1M1 EZREREERE T

BE-F-MFT-A=T-ALFEZ

2014 were as follows: EEMeFBERT ¢
Salaries, Retirement Equity-
allowances benefits settled
and benefits scheme share-based
Fees in kind contributions payments Total
AR RINER PNiavips)
we BEYF& sTEMHR  ERZAR ECR
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT THET THET FHET FHExT
Executive directors: BITES !
Xu Tie-liang SRR
(Chief Executive Officer) (TR #E#L) 120 5,130 18 12,800 18,068
Cheung Shing /A 120 - - 1,891 2,011
Guan Yijun FAstE 120 585 18 - 723
Zhu Yuan X R 120 1,063 - 1,101 2,284
Independent BUKHTES
non-executive directors:
Shi Xun-zhi sFIAn 120 - - - 120
Li Yun-long TEEE 120 - - - 120
Wang Guang-tian TEH 120 - - - 120
Total #aEt 840 6,778 36 15,792 23,446

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “ :




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

11 Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments (Continued)

11 ESREREER 2N (&)

Details of remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December

He—_T—

=F+TZRA=+—HIEFEZ

£= —=
2013 were as follows: ZEEMEFIBLT -
Salaries, Retirement Equity-
allowances benefits settled
and benefits scheme  share-based
Fees in kind  contributions payments Total
e AR E
ALK& RORAE A VARR 9 5
#E BN Bl B2 #azE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT T FHT
Executive directors: HITES
Xu Tie-liang SRR
(Chief Executive Officer) (1T L) 120 2,880 15 - 3,015
Cheung Shing kB 120 - - - 120
Guan Yijun A 120 585 15 - 720
Zhu Yuan K B 120 576 - 896 1,592
Independent BUkHTES
non-executive directors:
Shi Xun-zhi 5N 120 - - - 120
Li Yun-long TEEE 120 - - - 120
Wang Guang-tian FEH 120 - - - 120
Total et 840 4,041 30 896 5,807
During the year, no remuneration was waived by any directors (2013: FRN BEINEEREFH (= —=
Nil). £ E) .
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(continued) (4&)

11 Directors’ and senior management’s 1M EBREREEE2ME (&)
emoluments (Continued)
Of the five individuals with the highest remunerations in the Group, SERERSTHMEESR =R (ZF—=
three (2013: two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments F:ZR)RARAESE  HFMFBER X
are included in the above disclosures. The emoluments of the remaining WE -EBp R (ZT—=F: =R)2%
two (2013: three) individuals were as follows: BEFIE T -
2014 2013
—Z-mF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUREDHG 2,447 2,951
Equity-settled share-based payments VAR AE B DARR (D R AT 2 15K 2,060 2,825
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  RIRFEHIFHEI{E R 102 156
4,609 5,932
The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the following BUATHEHE  EEABLT

band was as follows:

Number of employees

EEA™

2014 2013

—E-mF —E=F

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 % 7T £ 2,500,00078 7T 1 2

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 3,000,000 7T 1 1
No emoluments were paid or payable to the directors and above HE-_T—NONFR=_F—=F+=A8
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as =T HUEMBFEE  SEWEZ N EM
compensation for loss of office during the financial years ended 31 e FTEEh ElsaFMNEE EA
December 2014 and 2013. BERENBEB SRR FRB 2 FHE -

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “ :
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(continued) (#)
11 Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments (Continued)

Details of remuneration paid to members of senior management fell
within the following bands:

1M1 E=REREER 2N (&)

BATHeEENENSREREXE H

BFF1S -

Number of employees

EEAE
2014 2013
—Z—MmEF —E—=F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T ZE 1,500,000 87T 7 6
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 77T 2,500,000 70 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 2 3,000,000 47T 1 1

12 Taxation

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax for
the year (2013: Nil).

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance note, subsidiaries in
Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at
25% (2013: 25%). Certain subsidiaries are entitled to tax concessions
and tax relief whereby the profits of those subsidiaries are taxed at a
preferential income tax rate of 15% (2013: 15%).

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and PRC) profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

12 %18

HREBRAFEEY ERREMNEZRE
ANEH 2 ERVEF - BRI EBEEF

BUIFREERA(ZF

—=F: &)

RIBHEBAPBRCEMESRE - KRB
4HEI - AR BN RI KB AR 25% (=
T—=1F :25%) 2R RENPBEES
e ETHBRARZEMRBGEERES
Bt ZEHMBRAR 2 HFIABEAEMH
FHREN15% (ZT—=4F : 15%) @Fi -

BN BREE KR BISN) B TIARB R
FERDEERERRITR RIZF ARG

AR MET E IR o

2014 2013
—ZT-mF —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Current tax: & HTRIA ¢
PRC corporate income tax A B SRS R 222,168 238,318
Overseas taxation BN TR (28,089) =
Underprovision in prior years MTFERETR 10,860 -
204,939 238,318
Deferred tax (Note 31) IRIERIA (BHFE31) 12,626 2,627
Taxation i1 217,565 240,945
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(continued) (#)

12 Taxation (Continued) 12 B (&)
There is no tax impact relating to components of other comprehensive BE_Z—NF+_A=+—HILEFE "
income for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). 7 75 A b 2 T W s AE BK BR 10 2 Bl 1S 2

E(—F—=F:8])-

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the S EBR TR M 2 FIRERE B E A S B s
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax FZMEFHOREEEZERSBEEEN
rate applicable to profits of the Group as follows: T:
2014 2013
—E-MF —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit before taxation BRET AT R A 854,163 1,178,540

Tax calculated at the applicable rates & A BRI Al AR 2 # A

in the tax jurisdictions concerned MEGTE 2 1A 227,299 301,881
Tax effect of income not subject ERRTIMA B E

to taxation (51,028) (34,857)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  NAIHIFFI ST 2 TS/ &

for tax purpose 51,949 19,356
Tax effect of tax concessions BEBER BB E (21,515) (45,435)
Underprovision in prior years WAFERETE 10,860 -
Taxation I8 217,565 240,945
The weighted average applicable tax rate is 26.6% (2013: 25.6%). BEAMEFHHRER266% (T —=4F
The increase is caused by a change in the profitability of the Group's 25.6%) ' BiE EARHRERMBATR
subsidiaries in the respective jurisdictions. FEMENEERR 2 BANEEFTEL

FARREEER AR 2014FF3f H:
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13

14

Dividend 13 KB
2014 2013
—E—IF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHBT
Final dividend proposed by way of NGB IR AL 3%
bonus issue of one bonus share for — IR 2 4T EE T2 =
every ten shares B RS
(2013: HK cents 0.72 per share) (ZZB—=%F: §8&0.72/81l) 5,300 36,005
A final dividend relating to the year ended 31 December 2013 BHE-_Z—=F+_A=+—HLFEZ

amounted to HK$38,014,000 was fully paid on 21 May 2014.

The Board resolved to recommend to the shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Tuesday, 26 May 2015 (“2015 AGM") a final dividend by way of
bonus issue of new share of HK$0.01 each (the “Share”) on the basis
of one bonus Share for every ten shares (2013: cash dividend of HK
cent 0.72 per Share) whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Tuesday, 2 June 2015 (“Record Date”) (the
“Bonus Issue”). The final dividend in 2013 amounted to approximately
HK$36,005,000.

The Bonus Issue will be credited as fully paid by way of capitalisation
of an amount of approximately HK$5,300,000 in the share premium
account of the Company.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a loss of
approximately HK$153,820,000 (2013: HK$130,884,000).
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BEFA TR ERE —RAKR (T —=
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36,005,000 BT °
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5,300,000 B T E AR 2 75 A RYIES
E o

RNEEE AEEER
DEEBARAEBIETR B ARD T

HRANEEIE 2 E518%7153,820,000%8 7T (=
T —=4F : 130,884,000/87T) °
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15 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$308,650,000 (2013: HK$401,494,000) and
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue less shares
held under share award scheme during the year of approximately
4,950,778,000 shares (2013: 4,931,092,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$308,650,000 (2013: HK$401,494,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of approximately
4,982,548,000 shares (2013: 4,979,945,000 shares) which is the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue less shares
held under share award scheme during the year plus the weighted
average number of dilutive potential ordinary shares in respect
of share options of approximately 13,979,000 shares (2013:
46,865,000 shares), share warrants of approximately 15,930,000
(2013: Nil) and the effect of awarded shares of approximately
1,861,000 shares (2013: 1,988,000 shares) deemed to be issued
at no consideration if all outstanding share options granted had
been exercised.

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

15 8RER

(a)

Ret EZRERREFIRE T ER QA7
B AEEEEEF% 308,650,000
T(=ZF— =4 401,494,000/ 7T )
RERNEBETERBRMETHSEOR
EFEARBER GO EEEEIMFRG)
494,950,778,000f% ( =T — = 4 :
4,931,092,000 f&) °

Rt & TR E T AR ETHERA A
HE AESSE % T4 308,650,000
BL( =& — = 4F : 401,494,000
L) REAB BT T BRINE T
H#)4,982,548,000 1 (= F—=
4,979,945,000 %) - BN E 247 L BAX
In#E S 5 EUR AR IR IR 10 B2 B 5t &1 A
FERR D N _ERZFT A RITE IS IR &
TEMERABUNTRERIT BT
SEE B INAE 9 E4Y 13,979,000 A%

— T — =4 : 46,865,000 %) * R
T 75 #715,930,0000 ( — T — =4 :
) KRR (D 471,861,000 (==
— =% : 1,988,000 %) 7 F/£ -
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16 Property, plant and equipment 16 Y% - MERRME
Plantand  Oil and gas (Note () Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  properties Pipelines Others  in progress Total
i) (HEEE )

BT REREE XRRMX B R ERIR gt
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-E-=%1-R

St-HLEE
As at 1 January 2013 W=E-=£-5-H
Cost AR 447,204 627,331 - 1475547 337,416 698,930 3,586,428
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (59.447)  (149,673) - (293,443)  (131,153) - (633,716)
Net book value %A 387,757 477,658 - 1,182,104 206,263 698,930 2,952,712

Year ended 31 December 2013 H2-E-=F+CH

=t-HLEEE

At 1 January 2013 R-Z-=F#-F—H 387,757 477,658 - 1,182,104 206,263 698,930 2,952,712
Currency realignment EHRE 9,381 11,556 - 28,600 4,955 16,047 70,539
Additions AE 1,990 17,598 - = 61,941 796,983 878,512
Transfers B 35,438 31,446 - 30727 3906 (301,517) =
Disposals e (320) (116) - - (1,403) - (1,839)
Depreciation for the year FRHE (18273)  (47316) - (71941)  (49,502) - (187,032
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-R=+-H 415,973 490,826 - 1,369,490 226,160 1,210,443 3,712,892
As at 31 December 2013 RZE-=#+ZA=1+-H

Cost A 495128 691,237 - 1741973 407828 1,210443 4,546,609
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (79,155 (200,411) - (372483)  (181,668) - (833717)
Net book value REFE 415,973 490,826 - 1369490 226160  1,210443 3,712,892
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16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16 Y% - MERZRME (&)
Plantand Oil and gas (Note (i) Construction
Buildings  machinery  properties  Pipelines Others in progress Total
BHR GEL)

BT HREREE RARME EE At  #EBIE ast
HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000

FiEn TER Fign TiEn TER Fign TiERn

Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZZ-MmE§

TZA=+—-ALFE

At 1 January 2014 RZZ—HF—HF—H 415,973 490,826 - 1,369,490 226,160 1,210,443 3,712,892

Currengy realignment B - - (196,634) - (36) - (196,670)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) BB HIBAR (i3 35) - - 2,336,388 - 274 2,336,662

Additions NE 21,664 46,520 315,940 18,073 40,700 956,702 1,399,599

Transfers R 94,585 177,671 - 491,248 1,768 (771,272) -

Disposals T (523) - - - (4,697) - (5,220)

Depreciation and depletion for the year & N & R 1E7E (24,183) (55771)  (138,014)  (90,249) (55,515) - (363732

At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=-A=+—H 507,516 659,246 2,317,680 1,788,562 214,654 1,395,873 6,883,531

As at 31 December 2014 R-ZB-RE+=A=1-H

Cost 5% 610,854 915,039 3,040,408 2,251,294 441580 1,395,873 8,655,048

Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERIER

and depletion (103,338) (255,793) (722,728) (462,732) (226,926) - (1,711,517

Net book value IREFE 507,516 659,246 2,317,680 1,788,562 214,654 1,395,873 6,883,531

Notes: s -

(i)  Others mainly represent motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment, () HMExZHEAH= KM HRERLE
and tool and moulds with net book values amounting to approximately EITANEEA: REFED AL
HK$119,422,000 (2013: HK$132,106,000), HK$47,443,000 (2013: £119,422,000% t( = & — = F:
HK$48,818,000) and HK$47,789,000 (2013: HK$45,236,000) respectively. 132,106,000 JT ) * 47,443,000 jt( —

T —=4 : 48,818,000 7T ) }247,789,000
BIL(ZZ—=4F : 45,236,00087T) °

(i)  Depreciation and depletion of approximately HK$339,006,000 (i) ¥ E K18 4339,006,0008 L(=F
(2013: HK$165,660,000), HK$1,376,000 (2013: HK$3,048,000) and — =4 : 165,660,000 7t ) * 1,376,000
HK$23,350,000 (2013: HK$18,324,000) have been charged in cost B (= & — = 4 : 3,048,000/ JT )
of sales, selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses % 23,350,000% T( = T — = F:
respectively. 18,324,000 77T ) DRI SHE KA - $HE K

AR R ATH B S AR HIRR ©
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

17 Exploration and evaluation assets

17 BERFLEE

2014 2013
—E-—NmF —T—=4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&x FAT
Cost (BN

At 1 January m—A—H - -
Currency realignment BEARE (17,768) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) W BB A F) (B 5E 35) 238,087 =

Additions NE 2,336
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 222,655 -

Exploration and evaluation assets represent the Group’s costs of
acquiring licenses and interests in undeveloped lands in West Central
Alberta, Canada, which are pending the determination of proven or
probable oil and gas reserves. The costs are accumulated in cost centers
by well, field, or exploration area pending determination of technical
feasibility and commercial viability.

The technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting mineral
resource is considered to be determined when proven reserves are
determined to exist. A review of each exploration license or field is
carried out, at least annually, to ascertain whether proven reserves have
been discovered.
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18 Land use rights

e MR MR

(continued) (#)

18 *ithfFE FHE

2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Net book value BREDFE
At 1 January Hn—A—H 192,365 140,093
Currency realignment BHsAz - 3,388
Additions NE 66,949 51,954
Amortisation for the year F R 5 (5,651) (3,070)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 253,663 192,365

The Group's interests in land use rights are situated outside Hong Kong
with medium term leases. The amounts are amortised on a straight-line
method over the respective lease periods no longer than 50 years.

SEMAMLIEREESUNET LR
S FHRPHEE c ZF2BUERZE
RAEBBS0F 2 A HEHANEE -
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e M HRAR MR

(continued) (4&)

19 Intangible assets

19 BEEE

Group Company
58 AT
Other Other
(Note) intangible intangible
Goodwill assets Total assets
(FfF=E) Hith Hith
[E5ES BILEE st BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET FHET
As at 1 January 2013 R=-B—=5—H—H
Cost BN 1,032,994 14,591 1,047,585 1,702
Accumulated amortisation BT = (1,252) (1,252) =
Net book value BREFE 1,032,994 13,339 1,046,333 1,702
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-E—=%
+TZA=+—HLEFE
At 1 January 2013 R-_TE—=%F—HF—H 1,032,994 13,339 1,046,333 1,702
Currency realignment B 10,484 235 10,719 -
Additions RE = 16,573 16,573 =
Amortisation for the year F N 5 = (1,398) (1,398) =
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—H 1,043,478 28,749 1,072,227 1,702
As at 31 December 2013 R-Z—=5+-H=+—H
Cost (BN 1,043,478 31,369 1,074,847 1,702
Accumulated amortisation G £ - (2,620) (2,620) =
Net book value AR FE 1,043,478 28,749 1,072,227 1,702
Year ended 31 December 2014 ®HBE—T—MNF
+T-A=1+—HLEEE
At 1 January 2014 R_ZT—mE—HF—H 1,043,478 28,749 1,072,227 1,702
Additions NE = 1,127 1,127 =
Amortisation for the year FNE - (1,442) (1,442) =
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF+=—A=+—H 1,043,478 28,434 1,071,912 1,702
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF+=-A=+—H
Cost %N 1,043,478 32,496 1,075,974 1,702
Accumulated amortisation Rt = (4,062) (4,062) =
Net book value BREFE 1,043,478 28,434 1,071,912 1,702
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19 Intangible assets (Continued)

Note:

Goodwill is allocated to a group of CGUs identified for sales and distribution
of natural gas and other related products business, which is also an operating
segment, representing the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined from value in use
calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs during the year. Management estimates a discount rate of
11.5% (2013: 12.6%) using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to this group of CGUs. The
growth rate of 3.0% (2013: 6.0%) for the next five years are based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The value in use calculations is derived from cash flow projections based on the
most recent financial budgets for the next 5 years approved by management.
Cash flows beyond 5-year period have been extrapolated using growth rates of
3.0% (2013: 3.0%) per annum, which is based on industry growth forecasts. The
Board considered no impairment loss is necessary as at 31 December 2014.

In sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded carrying value by
HK$4,687,000,000. An increase in discount rate to 22.2% or growth rate for the
next five years become -24.4% would remove the headroom.

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

19 BLEE (&)

FeE -

B B BRI & MBI R AR R E ERE &
EBAEANN AR EESMG (T2 —EAgE
D REERAAREEBNMUEHEEHEL
REEX) -

BB EABN 2 AT Bl S E T IRBEREE
MmetE - FABAECHARBRESIRFRTRE
BREREEBREERAZBHES - EREF
AREEAMSTHEEEHEEEERZARSE
EEMETRABRZHAMERGNEE11.5%
(ZZE—=F :126%) c KRRAF3.0%(=F
—=F 1 6.0%) ZEERNERTELRIEA -
EEREERAESH HENEMSRRES 2B
FHEHIRIEE -

EAEEEDREEEBAFORRAFANRK
e FHEREMEL RS REFRITEME -
BESFNESREEAREF30% (ZF—=
F :3.0%) HIE R RHERT - AR TEERR
B EERRBRAN_T—NF+_A=+—8H"
WA B EHERRE

S R 5 5K SR SR % L b A B 2 R S5 %5 69 AT Lt [
SHEEFEAEBERLRE/ANZERE4,687,000,000
BITEHE o TR R EFHE 22.2% SR R AL F I
REBB24.4% 8 EREE -
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

20 Interests in subsidiaries — Company

20 R B RER — D F

2014 2013

—ZT—MF —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR+ IRAAS 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE A Bf BB A B R IE 5,926,514 4,085,829
5,926,515 4,085,830

Except for the amounts due from certain subsidiaries to the extent
of HK$211,951,000 (2013: HK$203,200,000), which are unsecured,
interest bearing at 7.21% per annum and are expected to be repaid
more than 12 months after the respective year ends, all the remaining
amounts due from subsidiaries are not expected to be settled or
repayable in the foreseeable future and are therefore treated as part of
the equity investments in subsidiaries.

21 Investments accounted for using the equity
method

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

21

W EUCE THT B8 A R 2 5038 211,951,000
TT(ZZT—=% :203,200,000/87T) BEK
WWREF LT 21% T S BEFEHBREE
ERZ&BR12EBEEIN - EREUH
B A B FIETBE G T E R A &R RS K
BE BEARKBARERREZ —3
DRI o

EREREARZIRE

R M AN R ERZ BT

2014 2013

—ZT—MF —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FET

Associate /N 4,650 6,162
Joint venture EETHE 50,459 41,231
At 31 December ®W+=—A=+—H 55,109 47,393
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21 Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income are as follows:

e MR MR

(continued) (#)

21 EREREARCRE (F)

REFR2ERERERZ SRR D

2014 2013

—2-mE —T-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&xT THT

Associate i l/NE]| (1,512) (861)

Joint venture B 9,228 (3,212)

For the year ended 31 December HE+_A=+—RHIFE 7,716 (4,073)
Interest in an associate REEE D R

Nature of investments in an associate, which is an unlisted limited
liability company, as at 31 December 2014:

RoE-—mE+=A=1+—8 REEA
F(BELHERAT) AL T -

Percentage of

Registered Country of Principal interest held
Name capital establishment activities indirectly
GEE3ERo S
=L EfER B ZBR TEEH BAL
mETAhERBRAAR  RMB20,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 30%
BRAT AR 20,000,000 7T I AAREE

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “:
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

21 Investments accounted for using the equity 21 ERAERZEARZKRE (&)
method (Continued)
Interest in a joint venture REELERER
2014 2013
—Z—MEF —E—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Share of net assets: EIREEFE
At 1 January A—H—H 41,231 43,393
Currency realignment B R - 1,050
Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture Eh—EA20EERN(FH8) 9,228 (3,212)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 50,459 41,231

Nature of investment in a joint venture, which is a private limited

company, as at 31 December 2014:

R-ZE—NE+_A=+—8 REe&t
% (BALEERAR))EEZHE

Percentage of

Registered Country of Principal interest held
Name capital establishment activities indirectly
LEEZEZCE
=2 EfER B 2R TEXEH BaL
1L 78 B S SR i RMB 100,000,000 PRC Trading of coalbed methane 35%
AR A (Note) (HT3) AR 100,000,000 7T e KEREE
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e SRR M

(continued) (#)

21 Investments accounted for using the equity 21 ERAEREARZRE (&)
method (Continued)
Note: T

The following amounts represent the Group’s 35% share of the assets and UTReBEAHE T NER-_T—=F+—_4
liabilities, and revenue and results of the joint venture for the year ended 31 =+t HIEFEEEREGELCEZEEREA

December 2014 and 2013:

B EEBENEEZ35%

2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Assets: BE
— Non-current assets —IERBNEE 129,995 108,206
— Current assets —REEE 17,177 19,885
147,172 128,091
Liabilities: B8fE:

— Current liabilities —mEaE 96,713 86,860
Net assets BESE 50,459 41,231
Revenue St 262,655 173,814
Expenses 53 (253,276) (177,021)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREAEA,(EE) 9,379 (3,207)
Income tax PS8t (151) (5)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FEREF, (B8 &

income/(loss) for the year 2mEUkS (E18) 58 9,228 (3,212)

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f H:




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

22 Available-for-sale financial assets

22 AIHHEMBEE

2014 2013
—E-WmEF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Equity securities: RARFES
— listed outside Hong Kong —&BBINET 2 2
— unlisted outside Hong Kong —BBLAINE LT 455,000 190,000
Debt securities: BEEES -
— listed in Hong Kong — BB LW 108,485 314,342
— listed outside Hong Kong — BB BT 21,274 330,217
— unlisted —3FELET 450 450
585,211 835,011

At the date of the statement of financial position, all the listed equity
securities and all debt securities are stated at fair values.

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in the following currencies:

RAMBIRRKBH - PIE ETRAES

NEBEFGARFEE -

A EERNEEERMENATERHE

2014 2013

—Z—MmEF —ET—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FBT

Renminbi AR#E 457,020 233,267
US dollar = 128,189 590,701
Others Hp 2 11,043
585,211 835,011

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014




22
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial
position date is the carrying value of the debt securities classified as
available-for-sale.

Except for the unlisted equity securities outside Hong Kong amounted
to HK$455,000,000 (2013: HK$190,000,000), the available-for-sale
financial assets are pledged as a security for the Group’s banking
facilities (Note 36).

None of these debt securities is either past due or impaired.

e MR RAR MR

(continued) (#)

22 EHEMBEE (&)

REBRARBHZEREERRRDE
RAHHEEBES REE

B B LASNRY FE_E T AR AN #& 5 455,000,000
BT (ZZ—=4 : 190,000,00087T)5h -
AHHEPNBEETAER  EAEEIR
TRVE RIEIE (fIsE36) -

Inventories 23 &
2014 2013
—E-NF ZE—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FABT
Raw materials JRR 51,595 65,413
Work-in-progress FETE 43,287 52,289
Finished goods and natural gas Bk mm RRAR 100,721 68,224
195,603 185,926
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

24 Deposits, trade and other receivables

24 B~ E5REMEWIR

Group Company
£8 NG|

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF —T=F —EB-MmFE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHAT FTHET FHET
Trade receivables (Note (b)) B 5 MR (P 5 (b)) 758,349 372,414 - =
Loans to third parties (Note (c)) ERFE=7 (M) 373,074 266,348 = =
1,131,423 638,762 - -
Prepaid construction costs TAR R AR AR 153,770 234,831 = =
Prepaid for acquisition of land use rights lhé-Sw 5L SEINEA 191,045 206,583 - =
Prepaid for acquisition of properties &3 ESEINEN 78,570 78,570 - =
Prepaid natural gas costs TR RARKA 243,530 168,251 = =
Prepaid material and equipment costs TERA R R R AR A 143,295 87,111 = =
Interest receivables FEUF £ 113,359 90,833 = =
Other prepayments HAb B 137,857 106,050 55 -
Other receivables HAb MR 250,251 181,063 25,298 23,980
2,443,100 1,792,054 25,353 23,980
Less: Non-current portion R, IERENE D (968,436) (870,710) = =
Current portion mENE D 25,353 23,980
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24 Deposits, trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The Board considers that the carrying amounts of deposits, trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

At each statement of financial position date, the Group’s allowance for
impairment of trade receivables will individually be determined based on
the credit history of its customers, such as financial difficulties or default
in payments, and current market conditions. Consequently, specific
impairment allowance will be recognised.

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60 to 90 days to
its trade customers and keeps monitoring its outstanding trade receivables.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior management of the
Group.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

24 B~ B REMEBEWGIR

(&

fiiE

(@) BRAEPEBUTEA EERRA &
$ BHRAMEKIOE FEERRLA
TEARE -

(b)y MEEMBHRAKXBEH  £FEHEHEKE
FRERBHREETPHERESL (MY
R B SR T RIBRIT TS 6 1HE R E
JE o Bt - HERERIRERE -

SERTESEP 2 FHEEHN F60R
E0HZME  WETEEZER N RERZ
BHEPER SESREEEEHNEN
BHRIEZ KRR o

B HRBORRZREAIAT ¢

Group
58

2014 2013

—E-lmF —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Neither past due nor impaired BRER A E TR E 678,647 342,859
Past due but not impaired: B EREARIBE

-91 to 180 days —91£180H 29,129 18,716

— Over 180 days —88180H 50,573 10,839

Total A&t 758,349 372,414

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of approximately
HK$79,702,000 (2013: HK$29,555,000) that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in their credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

R-ZE-—WE+_-_A=+—8 2afe
RRERE 5 EWERF 479,702,000 7% 7T
(ZZ—=4: 29,555,000 7T ) BT HA I
EENCHNEEARTFEHE - BRER/EL
B EEHERE RZSEKTENLBE
WERE THRNEEEEWEERNED
RESKDEATE2EKE - SETERFF
FRAEKFERIEMBRZEEBRZEENR

=Y
=
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e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

24 Deposits, trade and other receivables 24 & - BESRHEMEBEWRFE
(Continued) (18
Notes: (Continued) Mt - ()
() Loans to third parties comprised of the followings: () EBERFE=AHBHFEUT:
()  On 23 September 2011, the Group entered into a finance () RZZE——FNLA=+=H 5

arrangement to provide various finance services to a third party for
a fee no more than 2.5% of committed financing amount. As at
31 December 2014, the Group advanced to a third party amounted
to approximately HK$347,674,000 (2013: HK$240,948,000) for
the construction of assets which will be under a sale and leaseback
arrangement resulting in a finance lease to a third party upon the
completion of the assets. The amount is interest bearing at 13.0%
per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the interest income arising
from this arrangement amounting to HK$58,878,000 (2013:
HK$36,466,000) (Note 10).

(i) The remaining balance represented a loan to another third party (ii)
to support the third party’s acquisition of natural gas friendly
vehicles. The loan to the third party is unsecured, interest bearing at
4.0% per annum and repayable annually in five equal installments
by 11 August 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
interest income arising from this loan to a third party amounting to
HK$1,016,000 (2013: HK$1,016,000) (Note 10).

FVBMELRE REZSHEBEARS
FTE=FH BETHBEAZRE
225%  R—ZE—HWE+=A
=t+t—HB SEEME=ZFBIRY
347,674,000 t( = F — = F :
240,948,000 7t ) AEEE &
FMZEEETNE —BE#ARET
B BERE = AREESRTRESR
BHE ZARAERFFE13.0%5
ﬁo

HE-_Z-—WmF+-_A=+—H
IEFE - HWEZHENFNERAR
58,878,000 T( = T — = F :
36,466,000 7 7T) (FizE10) ©

BRTEBRRBRERTE —F=AUIE
ZE—FEERAREH - ZEHE
=HERTDEER  REFEL0%
AEYR-_ZT—A"ENA+—AH
NEF—# pRHEE -H#E-F
—mNFE+—A=+—HALFE " F=
HEREENTSWAR1,016000
BL(ZZF—=%F 1,016,000/ 7T)
(K¥zE10) °

(d) The carrying amounts of the deposits, trade and other receivables are (d) e B5KHEAMEKFRIE 2 REEN
denominated in the following currencies: TE®BEHE -
Group Company
L | AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F 3 —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHETT
Renminbi AR¥ 2,341,876 1,775,117 - -
Canadian dollar hnt 72,653 = - =
Others A 28,571 16,937 25,353 23,980

2,443,100 1,792,054 25,353 23,980
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tre SRR M

(continued) (4&)

25 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 25 BAFELERARZUKE
loss =3
Group Company
£8 A
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-lF —E-=F —ZT-mF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT FET TR
Equity securities: RARE S -
— listed in Hong Kong —HELm - 81,800 - 33,138
— listed outside Hong Kong — &8N ET 4,657 4,657 - =
4,657 86,457 - 33,138
Debt securities: BHES -
— listed in Hong Kong —BELm - 2,156 - -
— listed outside Hong Kong — BB £ 21,419 29,732 = =
- unlisted —J LM 27,783 27,467 - -
53,859 145,812 - 33,138
The carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value through profit BEATELBE= AR KEE FAE
or loss are denominated in the following currencies: RS E¥EEE :
Group Company
&8 AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-pmE  —T-=F ZEBE-NOE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHAT FTHERT FHT
Renminbi ARE 4,657 6,571 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT - 79,887 - 33,138
US dollar = 49,202 59,354 - -

53,859 145,812 = 33,138

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial R B RE BN RAEERE BIZA
position date is the carrying value of debt securities classified as T EKIEIZARENERBSMNEERE

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are pledged as a AT ERBZAENVBEETINE
security for the Group's banking facilities (Notes 29 and 36). . EAEBRTRENK(M:E29 %

36) °
FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “ :




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

26 Time deposits, bank balances and cash 26 THAER ~ IRITERKIRE
Group Company
£8 NG
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T-=F ZEB-OF "—T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHAT FTEr FHET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHERS 2,394,584 3,019,253 260,262 62,366
Short-term bank deposits R EIRI TR 1,270,712 1,153,725 113,539 861,044
3,665,296 4,172,978 373,801 923,410
Less: Time deposits with maturity A ER BB =(E AR
over three months TEHER (973,739) (795,427) - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEEE 2,691,557 3,377,551 373,801 923,410

The interest rates for short-term bank deposits was approximately 2.7 %
to 4.2 % (2013: 0.04% to 3.05%) per annum. The deposits have a
maturity of ranging from 90 to 365 days.

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash are amounts of
approximately HK$1,567,000,000 or RMB1,234,000,000 (2013:
HK$2,351,723,000 or RMB1,851,750,000) denominated in Renminbi
which are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion
of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies and
the remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014

HHERTERNENENTH27%E
42%(ZZFE—=%:0.04% £3.05%) ° 17
THANF90HZE365H °

RITFER  RITHEHKIERE491,567,000,000
T ARES 1,234,000,000 L ( —F—=4 :
2,351,723,0007% 7T =k A R % 1,851,750,000
TE) A REESE - WFERTEAHH R
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tre SRR M

(continued) (4&)

26 Time deposits, bank balances and cash 26 THIER ~ RITEBREE S
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the time deposits, bank balances and cash are FEHER  RITERRR S 2REBENT
denominated in the following currencies: P EHEEHE
Group Company
G
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEF =% —E-lmEF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT FHET FHT
Renminbi AR 2,804,454 2,717,263 250,343 1,082
US dollar T 753,578 1,373,618 120,799 870,418
Others Hit 107,264 82,097 2,659 51,910
3,665,296 4,172,978 373,801 923,410
Trade and other payables 27 B REMEMNFIR
Group Company
AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=F —E-mF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHET FHT
Trade payables B S ERIRK 662,265 386,462 - -
Consideration payables FERRE 250,020 13,678 - =
Construction cost payables FERT A AN 328,300 247,680 = =
Interest payable FERIFIE 44,942 27,669 45,745 =
Dividends payable to e IR
non-controlling interests =R 61,127 5,246 = =
Salaries payable EfE& 49,545 9,007 - =
Accrued employee benefits fEEHE B & 28,871 = - =
Other taxes payable H A fEIHAIR 33,651 22,167 = =
Other payables and accruals HiENFE R R E B 221,759 147,895 398 28,262
1,680,480 859,804 46,143 28,262
HFOMMRREEBRDE 20145 F 5, Zs:
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(continued) (#&)

27 Trade and other payables (Continued) 27 ESNREMENTRIE (&
The Board considers that the carrying amounts of trade and other EZRARE BEHRHMEMNRIEBZER
payables approximate their fair values. EHEAFEEE -
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: B RMNBERZERSITAT :
Group
&8
2014 2013
—Z—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Current to 90 days BNEAZ= 90 H 554,963 334,299
91 to 180 days 912180 H 37,651 24,012
Over 180 days B8 180 H 69,651 28,151
Total ast 662,265 386,462
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in B 5 REMEMNKIERNEREEN TS
the following currencies: FTE
Group Company
£8 A
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-pmE  —T-=F ZB-mF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TAT FHET T
Renminbi AR 1,174,101 831,475 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT 372,812 28,329 46,143 28,262
Canadian dollar T 133,567 - - -
1,680,480 859,804 46,143 28,262
. =5,
28 Receipt in advance 28 FAWFKIR
2014 2013
—Z—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Receipt in advance for sales of natural  $5&E RAR K& E thiHREE @2 FERGRIE
gas and other related products 983,259 816,937
Receipt in advance for connections MRE BB 2 FEINRIE
of gas pipelines 245,850 189,656
1,229,109 1,006,593
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28 Receipt in advance (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, included in receipt in advance for sales
of natural gas was the amount received from customers using
I/C cards amounting to approximately HK$534,559,000 (2013:
HK$502,198,000), in which the movements are as follows:

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

28 TFEAWRIE (&

R-ZE—NE+-_A=1+—H  #HEXA
RNERFEABEERERI/ICKRER
R FRIE %) 534,559,000 B L (T — =4 :
502,198,000 7T ) * MW RIE 2 & &
I

2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E =5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 January m—H—H 502,198 575,698
Currency realignment B RE - 13,928
Payments received in advance G ELE O] 2,646,881 1,838,774
Redemption during the year FANEED (2,614,520) (1,926,202)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 534,559 502,198
29 Borrowings 29 188
Group Company
%8 NG

2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-pmE —E-=F ZEBE-AOF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT THEx FAT

Long-term = H
Other borrowings, unsecured HithfE & — i = 254,000 = =
Other borrowings, secured HifgE —BHEA - 700,000 - 700,000
- 954,000 - 700,000

Short-term y5h:i
Bank borrowings, unsecured RITEE - BIKH 450,557 215,900 = =
Bank borrowings, secured RITIEE —BEA 69,751 212,150 = =
Other borrowings, unsecured H{gE — EiEH 288,071 280,450 - =
808,379 708,500 - -

Total borrowings 1EEBE 808,379

1,662,500 = 700,000

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “ :
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

29 Borrowings (Continued)

The Group's borrowings are repayable as follows:

29 155 (&)

SEAREZEEWT

Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

BITEE Hinfg &
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=f —E-mE =%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAIL FET FET
Within 1 year —FR 520,308 428,050 288,071 280,450
Between 1 and 2 years —EZFR - = - 254,000
Between 2 and 5 years —FHFR - - - 700,000
Wholly repayable within 5 years AREENEHEE 520,308 428,050 288,071 1,234,450

The Company'’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

RAZ ENEFTNT

Other borrowings

Hih g
2014 2013
—E—IF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Between 2 and 5 years 2E54F - 700,000
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(continued) (4&)

29 Borrowings (Continued) 29 88 (&)
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEMREEN T EBE WA T3
following currencies and carried at the following interest rates: FZZ8R :
Group Company
%8 YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-mFE  —T-=F —E-JE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT THET FHT
Renminbi ARE 498,891 750,348 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT - 700,000 - 700,000
US dollar e 69,751 212,152 - -
Canadian dollar T 239,737 - - -

808,379 1,662,500 - 700,000

At fixed rates & e A= 498,893 865,108 = 700,000
At floating rates pad2 P 309,486 797,392 - =

808,379 1,662,500 - 700,000

Weighted average effective interest I B EFE -
rates (per annum):
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 4.4% 3.4% - -
— Other borrowings —HifEE 2.2% 45% 3.7% 3.7%

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “ :
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(continued) (#&)

(H 2%

29 Borrowings (Continued) 29 65 (&)

FERBEEZEEERAFENAT

The carrying amounts and fair values of non-current other borrowings
are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
RREE DA
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mE -—F-=F =B-0F _—FT-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THL TER THT
Group £H - 954,000 - 934,755

>
e
I

Company 700,000 = 683,549

The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate their fair
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

7

W EZEYTEXN  BHEEZRE
HAFERE

bR

fmf H-
%//
_H

/I

P

As at 31 December 2013, the fair values of the other borrowings were RZT—=F+=ZA=+—H ' HMifgE
based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the effective AFEDERERAER ¢ﬂ$ 4.2%PrEM
interest rate of 4.2% per annum and are within level 2 of the fair value REREABRAFEE=EX -

hierarchy.

Details of the Group’s banking facilities are set out in Note 36.

As at 31 December 2013, borrowings to the extent of approximately
HK$700,000,000 was secured by the pledge of the entire equity
interests in a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, the entire balance was repaid in full by
the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, certain facilities are secured by financial
assets through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets held
by the Group.
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30 Senior notes — Group and Company

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

2014 2013

—E-mF —T—=4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

US$ denominated senior notes AETFHEZ BERE 4,978,675 2,672,082

On 25 April 2013, the Company issued senior notes, with an aggregate
nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,713,000,000)
at par value (the “Senior Notes A”), which bear interest at 5.25%
per annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to
approximately US$344,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,666,000,000). The
Senior Notes A will mature on 25 April 2018 and are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

On 11 November 2014, the Company issued another senior notes,
with an aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$2,325,000,000) at par value (the “Senior Notes B”), which
bear interest at 5.00% per annum and the interest is payable semi-
annually in arrears. The net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance
costs, amounted to approximately US$296,900,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,300,975,000). The Senior Notes B will mature on 7 May 2020
and are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of the senior notes amounted
to approximately HK$4,844,867,000 (2013: HK$2,728,504,000).
The fair value of the senior notes traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the statement of financial position date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
senior notes are within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

R-ZZE—=FEmWMA_-+HH  AFKREAA
%% 17 BR ™ 42 {8 & 350,000,000 JT (8 &
7 2,713,000,000 % 7T ) B & %&£ ZE & ([ &
EEZEA]) REF525%E B F B
FBEFEIN - B EEZRTEREZME
X IE % BE A #9344,000,0003% T (BB E R
2,666,000,00087T) - BEZBAKKR=ZZ
— N\EMNA-+HBEHERE B
£

R-ZT—MNFE+—A+—8  QArRKAE
51T BRI 48B4 300,000,000 3 7T (A%

7 2,325,000,0007%8 7T ) B B HMNMB & B B
([BEEEB] - LT F5.00%: 2 BF
EB¥FIN -HBREEZRTERRBZAHN
1S 3R I8 58 A4 #9296,900,000 = 7T (FHER
2,300,975,0007T) - BAEREBER=F
ZEFRAACAEEBRNE BB L .

RZZE—NEF+_A=+—H BEFEK
Z ANFEHX 54,844,867,0008 (=&
— =4 :2,728,504,00078 7T ) - KRR E
BMSEE CBAEER A TFEREYS
MAE B ZMSMETE - KRERTS
THiE I8 St o F BRE R S FT ~ AR EH T -
LEAN - TEEE - RERBIRERE
MERELZTS  MEBRERELTE
TRZEBRAIRGZEM ERHE - Z5E
EEBEWINBAFEE—EBIX -
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31 Deferred income tax 31 EIETEH

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under BEMGHEREBEEINT R =HIRTK
the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted MAKRBPEEMIEER G 2MEEH
by the statement of financial position date. FTE -

ERAREANITEANASE B IRE E R
EMRBAEERE METHERIRE
— SR RIASETEMEH A E R

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the same fiscal

authority. BEHEH -
2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Deferred tax assets Lkﬁfr SHEE (5,643) =
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTSF A E 419,090 23,960
Deferred tax liabilities (net) BEMGEHAE CFRE) 413,447 23,960

BEFTSTRE 2 S B)FBMT

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2014 2013

—F-mE —T-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAxT

At 1 January n—HA— 23,960 20,829
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 35) U B BT B 7 (Pft5E35) 411,700

Currency realignment Bz (34,839) 504

Charged to consolidated RS BERAR (M 12)
profit and loss (Note 12) 12,626 2,627
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—H 413,447 23,960
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31 Deferred income tax (Continued) 31 ELEEH (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to FRECEMESHEERAE (BR MR
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the EREIR 2 AR 2 E BT ¢

year are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets BEFRBSHEE
Asset retirement obligation Tax losses Total
BEREAE HEES &it
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

“E-mF -ZF-=Ff CZE-mF <—T-=f CB-MF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAx THr FAx Tir FAT Tr

At 1 January ®—=HA-A - = - = - =
Acquisition of subsidiary kB AR (17.442) = (90) = (17,532) -
Credited to consolidated profit and loss STAGAEE (4,442) S (42,700) = (47,142) =
Currency alignment SRR 1,590 = 801 = 2,391 =
At 31 December mt=A=1+-H (20,294) = (41,989) = (62,283) =
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFBHARs
Accelerated tax depreciation
and depletion Others Total
MEBEFTEREH At &it
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z2-mF -T-=f ZB-mf -Z-=f ZB-MmF C—T-=F%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FHL THEL THL ThEx THL
At 1 January ®—A—H 4,628 4,746 19,332 16,083 23,960 20,829
Acquisition of subsidiary Wk BAR 405,196 = 24,036 = 429,232 =
Charged/(credited) to consolidated statement P44 2EMEX AN/
of comprehensive income FAGERENER) 16,292 (233) 43,476 2,860 59,768 2,627
Currency alignment ERAR (33,608) 115 (3.622) 389 (37,230) 504
At 31 December At=A=1+-H 392,508 4,628 83,222 19,332 475,730 23,960

FHRREEER AR 2014FF3f “ :
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31 Deferred income tax (Continued) 31 EIEFTIBHL (4F)

Deferred income tax liabilities to the extent of approximately
HK$49,693,000 (2013: HK$39,481,000) have not been recognised
for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries because the
directors consider that the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Unremitted earnings totalled approximately HK$1,693,006,000 (2013:
HK$1,214,893,000) as at 31 December 2014.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2014, the Group
had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$167,265,000 (2013:
HK$112,339,000) to carry forward against future taxable income. All
the tax losses will be expired within the next 5 years.
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EEFTSH A E 449,693,000 T (==
— =4 :39,481,000/8 ) WEER ETE
H R E M FRIE - b FRIE R R S A 3 L fY
BRAEIZAKELEFN  BAESRAED
TR AEETEN TR ERE
BTl R ARRED - R=ZFT
—NE+—_A=1+—8  KEHRBRFEH
49 41,693,006,0008 (=& — =4
1,214,893,000# 7T ) °

BREMBHREENEENREHEER
ARARERBRABFNER B LR &
MEEBEBEEMER R_T—DNOF
+TZA=+—H8 SEZAERHREES
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32 Other non-current liabilities 32 HtEREBAE
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Asset retirement obligation B R A 81,166 -
Accrued employee benefits FEETE B 18 F) 40,137 =
121,303 -
The movements in assets retirement obligation are as below: BEMBEREZZHNT
2014 2013
—E-HmF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
At 1 January n—HA—H8 - -
Currency realignment B RE (6,359) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB A ) 69,779 =
Accretion Al 994 -
Provision for the year FREE 16,752 =
At 31 December R+=A=+—8H 81,166 -
In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in Canada, BIENEAKEBEHAEEE  EEESE
the Group is obliged to accrue the cost for land reclamation and site HEERAMERAAREE (BIERERE
closures for the Group’s ownership interest in oil and natural gas RE) KT HFIZR R ARSI X A o
assets including well sites and gathering systems. The provision for B AEREAENBRECHEEURE
asset retirement obligation has been determined by the directors SEME AEBBEABRALERET -
based on their best estimates in accordance with the relevant rules and
regulations.

FHRREEER AT 2014FF3f “:
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes

33 RARBRE RE:TE

(a) Share capital (a) B
Number of
shares Amount
[gvig 2 E| K]
‘000 HK$'000
TR FET
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at R—ZE—=%—H—H -
1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 —T—=F+"A=+—HK
and 31 December 2014 —E-WF+=A=1+—H
SREEO0.01 BT Lk 125,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZE—=F—H—H
At 1 January 2013 EREEO0.01 BT TiEik 4,965,406 49,654
Issue of shares upon exercise [ B AR e I T {50 1 B A T AR AP
of share options (Note) (BR=E) 35,310 353
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+-A=+—H 5,000,716 50,007
Issue of shares upon exercise A B AR I A T (5 T B T AR (D
of share options (Note) (FfE) 48,860 489
Issue of shares under share R R ERT BTG
warrant scheme (Note) 250,000 2,500
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—NHF+=-_A=+—H 5,299,576 52,996
Note: MisE -

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company allotted and
issued 48,860,000 (2013: 35,310,000) shares and 250,000,000 shares
(2013: Nil) of HK$0.01 each for cash at the exercise price of HK$ 0.43
(2013: HK$0.43) and HK$0.01 (2013: nil) per share as a result of the
exercise of share options and shares under share warrant scheme,
respectively.
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes 33 BAKRERE RESHE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (b) HEREESE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by the
shareholders on 31 January 2002.

Under the Old Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its
discretion offer options to any eligible participant who is an
employee, executive or officer of the Company or its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who
will provide or have provided services to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Old Share Option Scheme, subject to further
refreshment of the limit on the grant of options by shareholders,
is 10% of the issued shares as at 31 January 2002, being the
date of shareholders’ approval of the Old Share Option Scheme.
On 14 August 2002, 9 June 2004 and 22 September 2006, the
shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary resolution
respectively approving the refreshment of the 10% limit on the
grant of options under the Old Share Option Scheme.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in any 12
month-period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the date of offer of an option.

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 28 days
after the date of the offer, with a consideration of HK$1 for the
grant thereof. Exercise period in respect of the options granted
shall be determined by the Board and in any event such period
of time shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date upon which such option is deemed to be granted and
accepted.

BRERRR-_ZEZ-_F—A=+—H
BB ORFER - RARNEB R S
(TRB B E]) -

REREBRETE EFRATRIG
REBRETENSERZEE -5
BR2EERANANENBERRZE
8 TRAERSRBE (BEARIK
HIfB R R Z AT RIEAITES) - U
REMEEREL/ARHENB L
BIRERE < HER  EXBERNE
[ o

BRI R B ARt &I AT 152 S 2 B AR A
itk zRMEE LR (RER ST
BHERERRE) AR ST _F—
A=+—H (B RH# &R B R
FEIZER) ZEBITRMZ10% - A
RAIRERE—_ZTE_FNATHIHE - =
ZENMFENANEEZEENFNA
“+TZHAREATRRER  HE
B HIRIE R B B AR AT &1 9% 1 B AR
2 10% PBREE °

RER+ZEARE SLaEKR2
HBEZEBLELRISBEOERERE
ZBHEETRNEBZ1% -

ERBREZATIRBERERS
Bt 28 HAMMN 1B T2 RERE
MERERT 2BRE - BREZTT
EHRBEERRE  MEEMBER
T EHHRTGHEAE HERER
BRRERERMAZ AR +F -
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes 33 BAKRERE RESHE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) MERREESTEI(EF)

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an
eligible participant under the Old Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the official closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of an option; (b) the average
of the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of an option; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

In order to motivate and reward the Company'’s staff, on 30 July
2009, the Company had granted to certain eligible participants
of the Company share options to subscribe for an aggregate of
100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in share capital
of the Company, under the Old Share Option Scheme (the 10%
general limit under the Old Share Option Scheme has been
refreshed pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 22 September 2006), subject to acceptance by the grantees.

The Old Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years from
31 January 2002 and terminated on 23 November 2011.
Nevertheless, the share options granted under the Old Share
Option Scheme prior to the termination continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the rules of the Old Share Option
Scheme.
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes 33 RAKRERE EBETE (EF)
(Continued)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) MEREESTEI(EF)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (i) BREZHE R NEFGTEELN
the share options are as follows: T
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price option price option
InFEFE B Y AR E
THEE #E 1115 B 2 e
HK$ ‘000 HK$ '000
BT TR BT T
Outstanding at 1 January W—A—HBEKRTE 0.43 48,860 0.43 84,490
Forfeited [mh3cal 0.43 - 0.43 (320)
Exercised (Note () BATHE (Fi5E (a)) 0.43 (48,860) 0.43 (35,310)
Outstanding at 31 December R+ =A=+—BHAKTE - = 0.43 48,860
Exercisable at 31 December R+=A=+—Ha7E - - 0.43 48,860
Notes: BIEE -
(@)  The closing prices of the Company’s shares at the dates on @) HE—_Z-—WNWF+_A=+—HILFE
which the share options were exercised for the year ended 31 RARORERETEBHZETER
December 2014 were HK$1.19, HK$1.32 and HK$1.35 (2013: 119870 1.32B L h1.35F (2 —=
HK$1.50 and HK$1.13). &F 1508 TR I113BT) °
(b) The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a by R-ZZE—Z=F+=—A=+—8 " HWKX/TE
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.58 years. RERRIE 2 IR F 1988 T & KV EAE /30,584 -
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes

(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

(ii) The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options held by a director and employees for the

years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013:

33 RARBRE RE:E (F)

(b) fBARAEHEI(H)

(il THXFREEERESEREZZ
E-WER-—ZE—=ZF+=H
S+ —HIUEEFEFARGERE

ZHIE
For the year ended 31 December 2014: HE-ZT—NEF+=-A=+—H
IEFE
Number of option ('000)
BIRELER (TH)
Exercise Outstanding Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding
Date of price per Exercisable at 1 January during during at 31 December
grant share period 214 the year the year 2014
R-2-DF it S :3
=1 -A-8 tZA=t-H
Rt 8 i WAGE  FRETE FRERK HATTE
HKS
7
Adirector of the Company 30 July 2009 043 31 July 2011 to 30 July 2014 - - - -
NI E “ETNE “B—EtA=t-BE
tA=1H “E-MELA=TA
30July 2009 043 31 July 2012 to 30 July 2014 450 (450) - -
ZETNE “B-CEtA=T-HE
tA=1H Z2-mEEA=TH
30 July 2009 043 31 July 2013 to 30 July 2014 600 (600) - -
Z3ENE ZT-CEtA=-HE
+tA=tH “2-MELA=TH
Sub-tota et 1,00 (1,050 - -
Employees 30 July 2009 043 31 July 20111030 July 2014 570 (570) - -
€8 “ZINE “B—HtA=t-BE
tA=1H ZE-MELA=TA
30July 2009 043 31 July 2012 to 30 July 2014 8,640 (8,640) - -
ZETNE “E-ZEtA=T-AE
tA=1H Z2-mEEA=TH
30 July 2009 043 31 July 2013 to 30 July 2014 38,600 (38,600) - -
ZEENE ZT-ZEtA=1-HE
+tA=tH “2-MEEA=TH
Sub-tota et 47810 (47,810) - -
Total @ 48,860 (48,860) - -
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes 33 BAKRBERE RESHE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) HERREESHEI(E)
(ii) The following table discloses details of the Company’s (il TERBEEEZERESEREZ =
share options held by a director and employees for the E-ER_EFE—=ZFF+_H
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013: (Continued) St —HIUFEFLAERE

ZEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013: BHE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—H
IFFE

Number of aption (" 000)

BRiEZA (Th)
Exercise Qutstanding Exercised Forfeited ~ Outstanding
Date of price per Exercisable at 1 January during during  at 31 December
grant share period 2013 the year the year 2013
RZF-=F RZT-=F
Bl -A-H tZA=1-A
frailzEd {1 fres HAE  ERERE ERERK BATTR
HK$
BT
A director of the Company 30July 2009 043 31 July 2011 t0 30 July 2014 - - - -
ARES ZZTNE 2 o
tA=1A Z2-MELA=1H
30 July 2009 043 31 July 2012 to 30 July 2014 450 = = 450
ZEThE B CEtA=t-BE
tA=1A ZE-MELA=TA
30 July 2009 043 31 July 2013 to 30 July 2014 600 - - 600
“EThE “E-CELA=t-BE
tA=1A “T-mELA=TH
Sub-tota It 1,050 - - 1,050
Employees 30July 2009 043 31 July 2011 t0 30 July 2014 15,330 (14,760) - 570
[£8 ZEERNE 2 o k)
tA=1A Z2-WELA=1H
30July 2009 043 31 July 2012 to 30 July 2014 29,190 (20,550) = 8,040
ZEThE B CEtA=t-BE
tA=1A ZE-MELA=TA
30 July 2009 043 31 July 2013 to 30 July 2014 38,920 - (320) 38,600
“EThE “E-CELA=t-BE
tA=1A “T-mELA=TH
Sub-tota It 83,440 (35310) (320) 47810
Total it 84,490 (35310) (320) 48,360
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes 33 BAKRERE RESHE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) MERREESTEI(EF)

The Company adopted another share option scheme (the
“Existing Share Option Scheme"”) pursuant to a resolution passed
by the shareholders on 23 November 2011.

Under the Existing Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its
discretion offer options to any eligible participant who is an
employee, executive or officer of the Company or its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who
will provide or have provided services to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme and
the Old Share Option Scheme is 10% of the issued shares of the
Company from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in any 12
month-period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the date of offer of an option.

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 21 days
after the date of the offer, with a consideration of HK$1 for the
grant thereof. Exercise period in respect of the options granted
shall be determined by the Board and in any event such period
of time shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date upon which such option is deemed to be granted and
accepted.

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an eligible
participant under the Existing Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the official closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of an option; (b) the average
of the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of an option; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

(d)

The Existing Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years from 23
November 2011.

No share options has been granted under the Existing Share
Option Scheme up to 31 December 2014.

Share award scheme

On 4 November 2011, the Board approved the adoption of a
share award scheme (the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) with
the objective to recognise the contributions by eligible employees
within the Group and to give incentives in order to retain them
for their continuing operation and development and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the rules relating to the Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Scheme Rules”), shares are comprised of (i) shares
subscribed for or purchased by the Company and delivered to the
Trustee appointed by the Company (Note 39(c)) subsequently; or
(i) the Trustee out of cash arranged to be paid by the Company
out of the Company’s funds to the Trustee and be held on trust
for the relevant eligible grantees until such shares are vested with
the relevant eligible grantees in accordance with the Scheme
Rules (“Restricted Shares”). The Board of Directors implements
the Restricted Share Award Scheme in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme Rules including providing necessary funds to the
Trustee to purchase or subscribe for shares up to 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Under the Restricted Share Award Scheme, the Restricted Shares
are granted to eligible employees of the Company or any one
of its subsidiaries for no consideration but subject to certain
conditions (including but not limited to, lock-up period) to be
decided by the Board at the time of grant of the Restricted Shares
under the Restricted Share Award Scheme. The Restricted Share
Award Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the date of
adoption.

(b)

(c)

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

33 RAKRBIRE RETE ()

BRESHE (F)

SR B~ F——F + —
A=+=BRAHBASEHF -

BE-_T—MOFE+=-A=+—-B R
ZAABREE TEYER T EMNRE
A

B 10 22 B =t &

R-ZZ——%+—A@A BFR/E
e SR AR — TR R R AT 81 ([ R I HE AR
D ERE 8 ) FRERAEFEES
EREBZER  REEBBELER
BRAMBNBREES  REEE—
FERBMEBEAT °

R R B 1A 0 22 B 5t 81 B BE AR A
(TRTEIRAND) - BRI A (i) A AR
FBEAUEREARTARRENTHE
A(BRE39(c) 2 Bt + (i) B FEA
UNRRBRAEEREXNTETEA
ZHRERBIBELRAFHLAER
S AMERET AR A Z B o (TR %)
Mk ) - EEZERDRIEF 8RR
AISERNAMaEREAIARIE - &
FRERERT R RIE R B 1A D
BEE BRAXEAREATE
T UBAIRBRZEARTEZ
EEITRA 10% 2Bt °

AR YRR B 1A £ B2 B AT &) - BRIl M A
MANERERTRAAEEREAZA
KRB EA—KMBRA - BEXER
EERRIBR IR 2R E R H
BRI A 1 B R TE RO B T 16k (B R (B
TR - ZEH) - REIERD 2B
ZB IR B RAER - REA+TF -
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(9]

Share award scheme (Continued)

The Restricted Share Award Scheme operates in parallel with
the Old Share Option Scheme and the Existing Share Option
Scheme. All options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
and the Existing Share Option Scheme continue to be valid and
exercisable subject to and in accordance with the terms of the
Old Share Option Scheme and the Existing Share Option Scheme,
respectively.

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board may, from time to
time, at their absolute discretion select the eligible grantees after
taking into account various factors as they deem appropriate for
participation in the Restricted Share Award Scheme as a grantee
and determines the number of Restricted Shares to be awarded.
The Board shall cause to pay the Trustee the purchase price and
the related expenses from the Company’s resources for the shares
to be purchased by the Trustee.

The Trustee shall hold such Restricted Shares on trust for the
eligible grantees until they are vested. When the relevant eligible
grantee has satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board
at the time of making the award and become entitled to the
Restricted Shares, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant Restricted
Shares to that grantee.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited. The forfeited shares
are held by the trustee of the Restricted Share Award Scheme
who may award such shares to the awardees as instructed by the
Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no share
awarded and 750,000 restricted shares granted to the director
and employees were vested.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 15,700,000 restricted
shares have been awarded to the directors and employees for
their services rendered to the Group, and of which 11,670,000
restricted shares granted to certain directors and employees are
immediately vested.
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33 RAKRBRE RETE (F)
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(0

Share award scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company granted
an aggregate of 250,000,000 units of unlisted warrants under
the Restricted Share Award Scheme which are exercisable into
shares of the Company. The fair value of warrants at the date
of issue amounted to HK$112,500,000. During the year ended
31 December 2013, none of the warrants have been exercised.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, no warrants were

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

33 RARBRE RE:E(E)

(c)

10 2Rt 8 ()

=

(BT —=F+=-A=+—HLF
S R EIRER B (5 R E) AT EIR
éét%oooooooﬁ#tﬁ*ﬁﬂ%%é
CAATEA R ARG o RAREER
ZITHHE 2 A E /112,500,000 %
TeoBE_TE—=F+=-A=+—8
WEFE - WEAARRAEBZEITE -

?u%EETt}@

pu)

granted and all unlisted warrants granted have been fully BE_ZT—N&F+-_A=+—HI#F
exercised. B WERHRREZRMEIELD
AR IERE B R EATE -
Details of the Awarded Shares awarded during the year FRE D 2 F1E
For the year ended 31 December 2014: BE-—T-—WEF-_A=+—HBItEF
g
Number of Fair value per
Date of award shares awarded share Vesting period
REBH RERGHE BRATE SEE
Directors of the Company
AEES
5 May 2014 10,000,000 HK$1.28 vested immediately on 5 May 2014
—mFERARA 1.287 7T R-Z—NFH AR ARREES
15 July 2014 1,380,000 HK$1.37 vested immediately on 15 July 2014
—HE+A+ER 1.37 87T R-T—MF+ A +h BB
Employees
B8
16 April 2014 400,000 HK$1.32 16 April 2014 to 16 April 2016
—PUEm A 1758 1.32%87T —WEMNA+ABE=Z—RFMA+H
5 May 2014 1,720,000 HK$1.28 5 May 2014 to 5 May 2017
—Z—MFERARAB 1.28 7T —E-NMFERARBE=T—+tFHARA
30 May 2014 200,000 HK$1.30 30 May 2014 to 30 May 2016
—mFERA=+H 1.30%7T —NERA=FTHREZT—"FHRA=TH
15 August 2014 1,000,000 HK$1.46 15 August 2015 to 15 August 2017
—mENA+RA 1.46 7T —hAENA+RBE_ZT—tFN\A+HH
14 October 2014 1,000,000 HK$1.28 14 October 2015 to 14 October 2017
—E-NE+A+HAE 1.28787C —E-RFTATHEBE_Z—+tF+A+THNA

PARAREARAT 20145 FH i
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33 Share capital and share option/award schemes 33 RAKRBEIRE REEE (E)
(Continued)
() Share award scheme (Continued) (c) RPEEETE(EF)
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company did not BE_ZT—=%+-_A=t+—HItF
grant any Awarded Shares. B RENER A ER ARG -
Movement in the number of shares awarded for the years ended HeE_ZT-—NEEK-_ZT—=F+_A4
31 December 2014 and 2013 were as follows: Z+—BLFE RERHEE EE
LU

2014 2013

—E-IF —E—=F

Number of Number of

Awarded Shares Awarded Shares

RERBEE HERIAR (D 25 B

Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BEERTE 1,750,000 2,500,000

Awarded B 15,700,000 -

Forfeited B - -
Vested =) (12,420,000) (750,000)

Outstanding at 31 December R+ A=+—H®EKRTE 5,030,000 1,750,000
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company HE-_ZT—MNE+=-_A=+—H
purchased 78,440,000 shares (2013: 48,920,000 shares) under IEFE - RaRERGEEE

the share award scheme. f8 B78,440,000%( = & — = F :

48,920,000 %) iz °
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34 Reserves 34 f#fE
Company NG
Shares and
warrants (Accumulated
Capital held for  Share-based (Note (a)) losses)/
Share  redemption  share award compensation  Contributed retained
premium reserve scheme reserve surplus profits Total
Bl
LdiEy | B
Bx  fiRRGR RN (W@ (BEE)/
RitEE EEfE AR Mkt O RERH a5
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr T TR TEr T T T
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%-f-H 1,572,081 %3 (10,993) 15,461 118 464 8,758 1,704,734
Issue of shares upon exercise of REREETERETRG
share options 22,199 - - (7,368) - - 14,831
Final dividend for the year HEZZ-—E+-A=1-H
ended 31 December 2012 HEE 7 RERE - - - - (32,275) - (32,275)
Purchase of own shares for Rk RE EEEA RN
share award scheme - - (54,810) - - - (54,810)
Issue of warrants under share award scheme RERARE BB TARES - - 112,500 - - - 112,500
Equity-settled share-based payments WERESIRAER 23 - - 543 3,070 - - 3613
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (130,884) (130,884)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F+-A=1-H 1,594,280 93 47,240 11,163 86,189 (122,126) 1,617,709
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options ~ REREEFEMETRS 32,960 - - (12,439) - - 2052
Final dividend for the year HE-F-=51-f=1-H
ended 31 December 2013 IEEEZRHRE = = = = (38,014) - (38014)
Purchase or issue of own shares ARDEETEEERE AT RG
for share award scheme - - (88,397) - - - (88,397)
Equity-settled share-based payments NERRENRABER AR - - 278 1275 - - 4,057
Reduction of share premium allowance AR RERRE (1,594,280) = = - 14183 122,127 =
Fxercise of warrants nder share award scheme  IREZR (VBT BT (AR - - (112,500 - - = (112,500)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (153820 (153,820)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-WE+=A=1-A 32,960 963 (150,875) - 1,520,328 (153,819) 1,249,557

FARREEER AR 2014FF3f Zs:
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34 Reserves (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
net assets value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation in 1993 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda 1981
(as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders in certain circumstances which the Company is able to
satisfy.

The share premium account of the Company is distributable in the form
of fully paid bonus shares. During the year ended 31 December 2014, a
special resolution was passed in the special general meeting to approve the
cancellation of the amount of approximately HK$1,594,000,000 standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company towards
offsetting the accumulated losses of the Company. The reduction of share
premium complied with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

: ! s CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014

34 f#fE (&)

f

(a)

RBEZHABBEERR - NN=FEE
MBI B AR EEFERBE AR
RUBEMBEBTROD < EEZ LR - RIE
—NWN—FBRERREEITAR) 2
AlZBARBES THERTAHDIR TR
R MEBRIRARREFSHLEFBR -

A A)Z B 5 B BR AT DA R AT AR 5 K AE 9
KeRBE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HI
FE - RNBEREHIAS LBE—HERR
2R AHEAE RS X B A0 )4 (B Bk 2 BB 0 HE B
#H#91,594,000,000 8 T AREH AR Z R
R - BIRBRDEENSE —AN\—F8
REREE -
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35 Business combination

Effective from 20 June 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in Baccalieu Energy Inc. (“Baccalieu”) from independent third parties
at a consideration of CAD235,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,708,600,000). During the year ended 31 December 2014,
the above acquisition was completed and the Group commenced to
account for the business combination from the effective date when the
Group gained control over Baccalieu. Details of net assets acquired and
gain on bargain purchase are as follows:

Consideration: RE
- Cash —Re
Total consideration BB

Recognised amounts of
identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed

Property, plant and equipment W - BB R (HiEE16)
(Note 16)

Exploration and evaluation
assets (Note 17)

Deposits, trade and other receivables &% - B 5 K& H b fEUEIE

Trade and other payables B 5 R H A ERTRIE

Short-term borrowings EHEE

HREFHEEE (HIFE17)

Other non-current liabilities HEMIEREAE
Current tax payable %‘Hﬁrﬁﬁlﬁ

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 31) BEEFIES & (FPEE31)

Al BRI EEFE

Total identifiable net assets

Gain on bargain purchase AEWEE

Acquisition-related costs of HK$29,787,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PSRBT A B E KRR BN ERR S

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

35. ¥%56f

BE-Z—WNFANA-t+H®E £SEEE
Y REERSE=F W Baccalieu Energy
Inc. ([Baccalieu)) W1 = Z ik - KB A
235,500,00000 7T (#1552 1,708,600,0007%8
L) c RBE-_T—NE+_-_A=+—Hi
FE FMEEEEEEKBEEEAER
H H (BN &= &5 % Baccalieu FIE HI#E RS )
FIABEBAHAR CWBEETFER
HERBREFBET

HK$"000
TEx

1,708,600
1,708,600

=B

2,336,662

238,087
101,805
(139,119
(199,518
(157,063

(23,057
(411,700

= o D ==

1,746,097

U BE AR RE AKX 2 29,787,000 8 T E RE = —
T—NE+-_A=+—BHIFEELZELAE
H=EITHRA TR -
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35 Business combination (Continued)

The revenue included in the consolidated profit or loss contributed by
Baccalieu since 20 June 2014 was HK$324,659,000. Baccalieu also
contributed profit of HK$93,505,000 over the same period.

Had Baccalieu been consolidated from 1

January 2014, the

consolidated profit or loss of the Group would show pro-forma revenue
of HK$8,078,201,000 and profit of HK$756,980,000.

36 Banking facilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had aggregate banking facilities
of approximately HK$2,906,000,000 (2013:HK$2,906,000,000) for
bank borrowings, of which approximately HK$2,752,429,000 (2013:

HK$2,490,652,000) was unutilised.

37 Commitments

(@) Operating leases

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 year to 20 years.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancelable operating leases falling due as

35.

36

37

EBabt (&)

BaccalieuBEZZE—WF AT HEME
BB A (Bt ARA B4 )& 324,659,000
7 JT ° Baccalieu’® [ 8 78 B Bt & A
93,505,000 % 7T ©

fiBaccalieuB —_ZT—MWFE— A —HEE
Wirg  AEELGEBR B REE WA
8,078,201,000 7 7t X & #) 756,980,000 /&

R=ZF—NF+=—A=+—8 £EIRTT
BB ZIRITRE B RE4) 5 2,906,000,000 78
(== — =4 :2,906,000,0007 7T )
Hh492,752,429,000 T (=& —=
2,490,652,000%8 7T ) WA ENFA ©

4l

TR

(a) EEEE
EERECLSHERHRELND B
A% - MEWEHEPCEE N T1
EF0FE T TE o

RZZE-—HFE+-A=+—H "  £H
BRETAHEEEEETHEMR

follows: R EHEENREEAT -
Group
£E
2014 2013
—E2-0F —ZE—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Land and buildings expiring: R EABR B HAEY £ 30 i
Within one year —F A 10,881 8,003
After one year but within
five years —FREBERAFA 13,600 7,966
After five years HF% 27,940 19,812
52,421 35,781
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37 Commitments (Continued) 37 ARIE(F)
(b) Capital commitments (b) EREIE
The Group had the following capital commitments outstanding SENEEMRAK B A AT RERE
not provided for at the statement of financial position date: HIRBITE RNAE :
Group
2014 2013
—E-mF ZE—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Contracted but not provided for: 2 5] 4B AR
Property, plant and equipment M - BRE R 442,939 233,680
442,939 233,680
38 Related party transactions 38 EEALRS
As at 31 December 2014, the Company was indirectly owned by Sino RZE—NE+=A=+—H RFlEH
Best International Group Limited (“Sino Best”), a company incorporated ZFRREEARAR ([HZEERE ] (REB
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) which in turn was wholly and RS ((EBERRMES ) ML
beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman and executive BAR AAREFEERMITESTHRRE
director of the Company, as to approximately 22.5%. The remaining ErEEREES) FEEEX22.5% AT
77.5% of the Company'’s shares were widely held. Mr. Xu Tie-liang and H#R775% RN BEEZRE - 5TRREE
other directors of the Company are considered to be related as they are RAREMESHAAREEZEEEAEM
members of the key management personnel of the Company. BARRRBIMBEEATL ©
Transactions with key management personnel HIXTZEBEAEBNRS
The directors of the Company are considered as key management NAEEHELAEEFETEAE - =&
personnel of the Group. The remuneration of the key management ERABZMEAFHEE SR EEE
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee having regard MATZRBRMSBEEETE - I T5%
to the performance of individuals and market trends. Details of the EATZHEFIBERME 11 -

remuneration paid to them are set out in Note 11.
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(continued) (#&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities

(a)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

39 TEMBARAIKRZESEKE
MER 215

(a) EEMBARFBEWT :

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
B#T
AL RAEE, DR
% FEERER & RERDL TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
i L3
Profaith Group Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned Us$1 100.0% - Investment holding
enterprise
REERRES 1% REER
SEBERE
All Praise Investment BVI, Wholly foreign-owned us$1 100.0% - Investment holding
Limited enterprise
REERRES 17T REER
SEBERE
China Oil And Gas Group BVI, Wholly foreign-owned Us$1 100.0% - Investment holding
Limited enterprise
REERRES 17T REZR
SEBERE
China Oil And Gas Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 = 100.0%  Investment holding
Management Limited foreign-owned
enterprise
L IEEERE 1387 REZR
Alta Financial Holdings BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Limited enterprise
EREHEERRAR HEERRES 1,000%7T REER
INEEERE
Zhongda Industrial BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$10,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Group Inc enterprise
FATEEEERAA HBERRES 10,0003 7T REE
SEBERE
China Oil And Gas Group Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
(Asia) Limited foreign-owned
enterprise
HURRAR S (Z2M) BB INEEERE 18T REER

BRAHE]
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39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

(continued) (#)

39 FEMBLARIRZEHSHKE

MERE 215 (&)

(a) EEMBEARAFIBWE : (&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
28T
SRR L1t 2 BAEE, N F] A
a8 EEERER HMER RERDL TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
HE k3
Hong Kong China Oil And  Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Gas Group Limited foreign-owned
enterprise
AR BHRRER 5% INEBERE 17T REER
BRAR
PR RARREEE PRC, Wholly foreign-owned ~ RMB1,000,000,000 - 51.0%  Investment holding
BIR7AF] ("CCNG”) enterprise and trading of
natural gas
HRRRRRIREEE HE  NEREERE AR BREERERARE
BRAR ([HdE$ZE]) 1,000,000,000 7T =
AEFRRTEREMAF  PRC, Limited liability RMB65,874,000 = 40.8%(i)  Trading of natural
company gas, gas pipeline
construction and
operation of
natural gas stations
HE - ERAEEAR AR 65,874,000 7T AAREE - AAR
EEEERRAR
g
SELATMREELZETIZ PRC, Limited liability RMB40,000,000 - 40.8%(i)  Gas pipeline
BREFEAQF company construction
HE - EREEAR AR® 40,000,0007T AAREBRE
SEPHBEAARTHEE  PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 40.8%(i)  Trading of natural gas
BRAT] company
HE - BREFAT AF# 20,000,000 7T AAREE
EREEEERAR PRC, Limited liability RMB900,000 - 40.8%()  Trading of natural
company gas-related
equipment
HE - BREFAT AR 900,000 7T AARBEEREEE
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(continued) (#&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

39 TEMBARAIKRZESEKE
MER 215 (&)

(a) EEMBERARFBWE : (H&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
28T
MRt 2 BAREE, N A FEA
a8 ERERER HEfER BERD L FEEK
Directly  Indirectly
HiE B
ERERHREERETLAR  PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000 - 30.6%()  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - BREMAT AE#100,000,0007T AAREE R
FAREHERE
EMFRRREREMLAR PRC, Limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 40.8%(i)  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - BREERE AK# 30,000,000 7T AAREE R
AAREERE
BRPHMAEEETRA PRC, Limited liability RMB 10,000,000 = 50.5%  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - BREERE AK# 10,000,000 7T AAREE R
AAREERE
HETAMRAEREEAT  PRC, Limited liability RMB27,000,000 = 30.6%()  Natural gas
company transmission
through pipeline
HE - BREERE AR# 27,000,000 7T EBAARBIE
SEHREPRMRERMTFZ  PRC, Limited liability RMB12,000,000 - 51.0%  Production and
BRAF company trading of liquefied
natural gas
HE - EREEAR AR# 12,000,000 7T BIERAREERE
g
FNPRREERETAR  PRC, Limited liability RMB25,000,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas

company

RE - BREERT
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39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

e IR R M

(continued) (4&)

39 FEMBLARIRZEHSHKE

MER 15 (&

(a) EEMBEARAFIBWE : (&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BET
Eatti)ave:t- v RAEE, NEFEMG
% FRERER AfEA RER DL TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
HE i
BN R R AR A A PRC, Limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
FE - FREFERA AR #30,000,0007T AAREER
ARREBRE
ML FZERRRAR AT PRC, Limited liability RMB12,000,000 = 40.8%(i)  Trading of natural gas
company
hE - BREERQF AR 12,000,0007T AAREE
HRP R (RE) PRC, Limited liability RMB75,000,000 - 80.4%  Transportation
BRAT company services
hE - BREERT AR # 75,000,000 7T EhRTS
SHEPHEERRABRAE PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 = 51.0%  Natural gas
company transmission
through pipeline
hE - BREFERA AR # 20,000,000 7T BERARES
RN EERAAR PRC, Limited liability US$10,000,000 = 455%(i)  Gas pipeline design
ERAF company and construction,
natural gas
transmission
through pipeline
HE - BREMERA 10,000,00037T ARREBRTRE
& BERARE
R REHM R AR PRC, Limited liability RMB 12,000,000 - 306%() Trading of natural gas
EERT] company and gas pipeline
construction
hE - BREERT AR # 12,000,000 7T AAREER
AAREBRE
PERBRTAREEAR  PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 35.7%(i)  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - EREEAR AR #20,000,0007T AARBEER
AAREBRE
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(continued) (#&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

39 TEMBLAIRZEFEFHRE

MER 215 (&)

(a) EEMBEARAFRWE : (&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
2#1T
Eatijadve:.Lye BAEE, DRIEL
Z8 FEERER SEfER REB DL TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
HE k3
FilH 2R ORI #EERBMR  PRC, Limited liability RMB71,000,000 - 51.0%  Investment holding
NG company
hE - BREERF AR # 71,000,000 7T RERER
Ik RARBREMELRF  PRC, Limited liability RMB 15,000,000 - 35.7%(i)  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
hE - BREERTF ARH 15,000,000 7T RAREBER
ARREBRE
Ik TmRRER AR AR AR PRC, Limited liability RMB2,000,000 - 35.7%(i)  Trading of natural gas
company
T BREERA AR 2,000,000 70 ARREE
RERAMAAR PRC, Limited liability RMB75,000,000 - 35.7%()  Trading of natural gas
BREMARA company and gas pipeline
construction
hE - BREERF AR H# 75,000,000 AAREER
ARREBRE
HEDHPREERE PRC, Limited liability RMB50,000,000 - 40.8%()  Gas pipeline design
BRAF company and construction
HE - BREERF AR # 50,000,000 RAREBRAT ME
&
A R2EREARAT PRC, Wholly foreign-owned HK$187,500,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding,

enterprise

TE - SMEEELE
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39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued) (4&)

39 FEMBARIRZEHISHKE
MEE 215 (&

7=

(a) EEMBEARAFIBWT : (&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
28T
SRR L1t 2 RAEE, el
a8 EEERER HMER REBAE TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
HE k3
TR HRE AR A PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB18,000,000 - 80.4%  Trading of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
TE PHEEEE AR# 18,000,000 7T AAREER
HE RAREERE
PRI EEEER PRC, Wholly foreign-owned USD75,000,000 = 100.0%  Investment holding
Nl (AIRER AR enterprise
(BR)REBRRA)
HE  NERERE 75,000,000 5T BEER
EREFREMEARAR  PRC, Limited liability USD12,000,000 - 100.0%  Provision for finance
company
HE - EREEAR 12,000,000 %70 REEE
BINRRRRAERETLRAR PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB40,000,000 - 38.8%(i))  Trading of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE RGBSR AR 40,000,000 7T AAREER
% AAREBRE
FEPHE T IERERMIA PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB26,000,000 = 60.4%  Trading of natural gas
BRAT] joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE - HINEEAERE AR 26,000,000 7T AAREER
AAREBEE
B RRE AR EEAR  PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB 15,000,000 - 75.0%  Trading of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE - HINEERE ARH 15,000,000 7T AAREER
o AAREEREE

FARREEER AR 2014FF3f Zs:
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(continued) (#&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

39 FEMBLARIRZEHISHKE

MER 215 (&)

(a) EEMBERARFBWE : (H&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
B#T
a2k Ly RAEE, NEEMR
% FEERER AfMEA REFDL TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
i L3
SEMTIARAE] PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB100,000,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE - FHRERE AR #100,000,0007T AAREER
% ARREBREE
Baccalieu Energy Inc. Canada CAD 77,450,000 = 100.0%  Exploitation and
distribution of
crude oil and
natural gas
mEX 77,450,000 /17T FIER R IR0 %
AAR,
Notes: B &E

(i)  The Group holds controlling interests in these subsidiaries through a
51.0% owned subsidiary, CCNG. Therefore the Group has control
over these entities and they are considered as subsidiaries of the

Company.
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39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) The Group holds controlling interests in this subsidiary through
CCNG and a wholly owned subsidiary, Hong Kong China Oil and
Gas Group Limited (“HKCOGG"). Therefore the Group has control
over this entity and it is considered as subsidiary of the Company.

(i)  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial
information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests that are material to the Group. The
information below is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.

e MR MR

(continued) (#)

39 TEMBARAIKRZEFEKE
MERE 215 (&)

(a)

(b)

ERMBARFREOT - (F)

BisE - (&)

(i) KEEBETHTHRRE2EMBARE
BHRHRREEERAR ([FETH
MR D 5% M B A B R o
It REEAZERIEGE  MRE
BHRER/RDAINMBRR -

(i) EERR  ERMIIARMBARE
EYEAFANREREEEEEFE
ERED - EEZRE - REHMKE
RAZFHEEERRRITE °

TREIIFRFRREME LR (S
HEEMSBEAZFERER)RE
MBEEHBE - THRERBQARABY
SHAI 2 &% -

2014 2013

—E—MF ZE—=%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Total assets HEE 9,253,761 8,660,826

Total liabilities HERE (5.817,289) (5,750,091)

Net assets BEFE 3,436,472 2,910,735

Revenue G 6,098,310 5,339,680

Profit for the year F N Fl) 324,309 711,484

Other comprehensive income E b 2mE = - 50,940

Total comprehensive income EEW =BT 324,309 762,424
Dividend paid to SRS T IR =

non-controlling interests 187,180 176,695
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(continued) (#&)

39 FEMBLARIRZEHISHKE
MER 215 (&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(b) Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial
information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests that are material to the Group. The
information below is the amount before inter-company
eliminations. (Continued)

(b) TRE|EIIPMPRRENBEAR (R
HEEMSBEAZEERER) FE
MBEERBE THRERBQRABY
SHAI 2 &5 - ()

CCNG

bR S

2014

—E—MF

HK$'000

FET

Net cash generated from operating activities EREBEE 2 IREIFRE 604,515
Net cash used in investing activities WEEB AR T8 (579,664)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEB TR 2 IR EIFRE (108,615)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReMREEBEBEERMFEE (83,764)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HBZH&kRESEEEE 1,167,777
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes b B R 2 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RT-ZA=+—BzHekRecEEIER 1,084,013
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39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(c)

Details of the controlled special purpose entity are as
follows:

The Company controls a special purpose entity which operates in
Hong Kong, particulars of which are as follows:

Special purpose entity

B E HERE

Principal activities

EREK

e MR MR

(continued) (#)

39 EEBTTJE’A:J&;%T“%U%% B

MER2H15 (&)
(0 SEHKHKENEBREDT :

N

ARER —HEREELHNEKRE D
C HEFBT

==
=]

?E?é

Best Thinker Limited (“Trustee”)

Purchases, administers and holds the Company’s shares for the Restricted Share

Award Scheme for the benefit of eligible employees of the Group

Best Thinker Limited ([ Z5EA J)

As the Trustee is set up solely for the purpose of purchasing,
administering and holding the Company’s shares for the
Restricted Share Award Scheme (Note 33(c)), the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
the Trustee and it can derive benefits from the services of the
employees who have been awarded the Restricted Shares through
their continued employment with the Group. The assets and
liabilities of the Trustee are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position from its adoption and the Company’s shares
held by the Trustee are presented as a deduction in equity as
“shares held for share award scheme”.

40 Approval of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2015.

REESERESMETRHIERD BB EIBEA - EE RSB RRIKD

BN EEATIE 5 R B 1A 1D 228
éJriﬂ(ﬁﬁ%%(c))f‘éf)\ BEEEFEAR
AlRMMRE - ARBEEFZTEA
M BT IR R B IOR - X A R
HEERNHEE THREXBREBERFT
RUNBBEESHE - XEANEE
ReBEEERERAKEEBEEA

R M BIMAERT - WHEFEAR
BORARIBMER—EINRIEE £#
ST ER - JIE B EZRE EIFE
Bt ) e

40 #EFSMIEERR

EERN_F—
BTIEEA

AF=ZA=1tB#ERK
ISR ©
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFEMEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for UTERERBEAEVBFEFEXEREENRS
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial & DRESEEEHE 2 KRBERMBERERIL TIAE
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. iEE oM -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—-HLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E2-mE —T—=fF —T——fF —T——fF —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT T T FAT
Results ¥45
Revenue ] 7,697,811 6,439,825 4,889,428 4,390,955 2,626,007
Profit before taxation BRI R A 854,163 1,178,540 935,786 646,139 439,498
Taxation B8 (217,565) (240,945) (201,600) (145,757) (85,668)
Profit for the year FE R A 636,598 937,595 734,186 500,382 353,830
Attributable to: AT :
Owners of the Company UNTEZ 2PN 308,650 401,494 365,705 208,932 164,560
Non-controlling interests FEE R iR 327,948 536,101 368,481 291,450 189,270
636,598 937,595 734,186 500,382 353,830
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NE —T—=F —ER—CF =5 —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET T FET
Assets and liabilities BENEE
Total assets BEE 15,467,449 12,156,658 9,188,494 7,101,536 4,466,006
Total liabilities BaE (9,374,700) (6,330,511) (4,161,664) (2,903,432) (1,214,329)
Total equity TS 6,092,749 5,826,147 5,026,830 4,198,104 3,251,677
Non-controlling interests FEFE RS (2,491,642)  (2,278,767) (1,847,039) (1,438,629) (822,565)
Equity attributable to owners RAEAA
of the Company FEh iR 3,601,107 3,547,380 3,179,791 2,759,475 2,429,112
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